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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DiVlSION OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES

29 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
603-271-4501 I-000-8S2-334S Ext 4501

Fax: 603-271-4827 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.<lhhs.nh.gov

February 9, 2024

Ns Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division of Public Health
Services, to amend an existing contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC #161611-
B001), Bow, NH, to continue coordinating federal shortage designations within the state, by
exercising a contract renewal option by increasing the price limitation by $108,108 from $63,760
to $171,868 and by extending the completion date from June 30,2024 to June 30. 2026, effective
July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval. 41% Federal Funds. 59% General Funds.

The original contract was approved by Governor and Council on June 29,2022, item #34.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2025, and are
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2026, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operating budget, with the authority to adjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances t}etween state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justified.

05-95-90-901010-79650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SVS, HHS: DIVISION OF PUBLIC HEALTH, BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE ACCESS,
EQUITY, AND POLICY, RURAL HEALTH AND PRIMARY CARE 41% Federal Funds 59%
General Funds

State

Fiscal

Year

Class /

Account
Class Title

Job

Number

Current

Budget

Increased

(Decreased)
Amount

Revised

Budget

2023 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog SVC
90072009 $31,880 $0 $31,880

2024 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog SVC 90072009 $31,880 $0 $31,880

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog SVC 90080008 $0 $44,348 $44,348

2025 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog SVC 90072009 $0 $31,880 $31,880

2026 102-500731
Contracts for

Prog SVC
90072009

$0 $31,880 $31,880

Total $63,760 $108,108 $171,868



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request Is for the Contractor to continue to assist the Department with
federal shortage designation in an effort to increase access to outpatient primary care services
for undersen/ed areas in the State.

The Contractor will continue assessing areas for federal shortage designation to identify
areas with a shortage of primary care providers (physicians, dentists, psychiatrists, and certified
nurse midwives). The Contractor will continue to identify workforce and health disparities and
identify communities in New Hampshire that face t)amers to accessing primary care, including
rural, low income, uninsured and Medicaid and Medicare populations. Designation as a Health
Professional Shortage Area enables eftgibility for a number of federal and state programs,
designed to recruit and retain providers in undersen/ed areas. In addition, supplemental fur>ding
became available through the Bureau of Health Workforce. Division of Policy and Shortage
Designation, State Primary Care Offices grant to also support data analysis of a new shortage
designation status, Maternity Care Target Areas (MCTA's).

The Department will continue to monitor contracted services through:

•  The annual updates made to the statewide primary care needs assessment.

•  Shortage designations and re-designations.

As referenced in Exhibit A, Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions, of the original
agreement, the parties have the option to extend the agreement for up to two (2) years, contingent
upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties and Governor
and Council approval. The Department is exercising its option to renew services for two (2) of the
two (2) years avaHable.

Should the Governor and CouncS not authorize this request, the Department may not have
the ability to identify areas in New Hampshire experiencing a shortage of primary medical,
psychiatric, maternity care, artd/or dental care providers eligible for federal shortage designation
and bring additional resources to these underserved areas of the state.

Area sen/ed: Statewide.

Source of Federal Funds: Assistance Listing Number 93.130, FAIN U6811508.

In the event that Federal Funds are not available, additional General Funds will not be
requested.

Respe^lly ̂IJpmitted,

Lori A. Weaver I )
Commissioner

QTye Department 0/ Health and Human Servieet'Miesion ia lojoin eommunilies and famiUee
in providing opportunities for citizens to a^ieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #1

This Amendment to the Health Workforce and Primary Care Access Data contract is by and between the
State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services ("State" or "Department") and JSI
Research & Training institute, Inc. ("the Contractor").

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on June 29, 2022 (Item #34), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and
conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums speciiled; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, the Contract may be amended upon written
agreement of the parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 Genera! Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

June 30, 2026

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$171,868
\

3. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 1, to read:

1. This contract is funded by:

1.1. 26% Federal Funds from State Primary Care Offices, as awarded on July 28, 2023
by US DHHS, Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), ALN 93.130,
FAIN U6811508.

1.2. 74% General Funds.

1.3.. For the purposes of this Agreement the Department has identified:

1.3..1 The Vendor as a Contractor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

1.3.2 The Agreement as NON-R&D, in accordance with 2 CFR §200.332.

4. Modify Exhibit C, Payment Terms, Section 2, to read:

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in the
fulfilment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line items, as
specified in Exhibit C-1, SFY 2023 Budget Sheet through Exhibit C-3, Budget, Amendment
#1.

5. Add Exhibit C-3, Budget, Amendment #1, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference
herein.

JSI Research & Training institute, Inc. A-S-1.3 Contractor Initials
2/9/202T

RFA-2022-DPHS-11-HEALT-01-A01 Page 1 of 3 ■ Date

•OS

v7.12.23
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All terms and conditions of the Contract not modified by this Amendment remain in full force and effect.
This Amendment shall be effective July 1, 2024, upon Governor and Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

2/12/2024

Date

—OeeuSlBMd by:

Name:

Title: interim Director - dphs

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

2/9/2024

Date

y'^OocuSleMd by:

1  fdM
^-F»iacaif4MC<aoiii
Katie RobertName: xatie ro

Director

JSI Reseaich & Training Institute, Inc.

RFA-2022-DPHS-11-HEALT-01-A01

eff. 7.12.23

A.S-1.3

Page 2 of 3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

y'^DeeiiSlenM] by:

2/13/2024 I
.11.-II V. i;u7ai>j«»*4N»M .i.i—

Date Name:Robyn Guanno
Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

JSI Research & Training Institute. Inc. A-S-1.3

RFA-2022-DPHS-11-HEALT-01-A01 Page 3 of 3
eff. 7.12.23
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ExhUtC-S Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Contractor Name: JSI Research S framing Insitute, Itk.

Budget Request tor: Heeffh \M)r1dOnsa and Primary Can Access Data

Budget Period: State Fiscal Years 2025 & 2026

Indirect Cost Rate (If applcatde) 20.59%

Line Item

Program Cost • Funded
by DHHS - 8f^,2G '
General Futtds

Program Cost - Funded

cbyDHHS-S^26
FederiliFunds

. Program Cost-Funded by

DHHi8 - 8^ 26 General Funds

1. Salary & Wages S17,894 $25,307 $17,894

2. Fringe Benefits $8,399 $11,879 $8,399

3. Consultants $0 $0 $0

4. Equipment

Indirect cost rate cannot t>e applied to equipment costs per 2
CFR 200.1 and Appendix IV to 2 CFR 20a

$0 $0 $0

5,(a) SuppGes • Educational $0 $0 $0

S.(b) Supplies - Lab $0 $0 $0

5.(c) SuppGes - Pharmacy

$0 $0 $0

S.(d) SuppGes - Medical $0 $0 $0

6. - Travel $0 $0 $0

7. Software $0 $0 $0
8. (a) Otfier - Marlcetirtg/Communicatiorts $0 $0 $0

S. (b) Other - Education and Training $0 $0 $0

& (c) Other - Other (specify below) $0 $0 $0

Other (please specity) $0 $0 $0

Other (please specriyj. $0 $0 $0

Other (please specrry; $0 $0 $0

Other (please specify) $0 $0 $0

Other (please specity) $0 $0 $0

Other (please speaiy) $0 $0 $0
Other (please specity) $0 $0 $0

a Sutireopient Contracts $0 $0 $0

Total Direct Costs $26,293 $37,186 $26,293

Total Indirect Costs . ... . . $5,587 $7,162 $5,587

Supfota/s $31,880 $44,348 $31,880
"LIT' ^ w- ^ ♦ TOIAL-- - - -$108.«8

Contactor Wtial:
5

Project ID* DatK
2/9/2024
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State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING

(NSTITUTE, INC. is a Massachusetts Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on February 17,

2016.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received and is in good

standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 739507

Certificate Number: 0006558250

Om

o

5^

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Sea) of the State of New Hampshire,

this 30th day of January A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretary of State
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1. Antonia Powell hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Clerk/Seaetary/Officer of JSI Research & Trainino Institute. Inc.
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. Tbe following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on January 11 , 2024 . at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Katherine Robert (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of JSI Researgfi & Train'"Q Institute. Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with the
State

(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority was valid thirty (30)
days prior to and remains valid for thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify
that it is understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the per8on(s)
listed above currently occupy the position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in contracts with
the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: February 7. 2024

r\r\ /rv-T ir^r\r\ a Signature of Elected Officer
02/07/2024 Name: Antonia Powell

Title: Assistant Clerk/Secretary

Rev. 03/24/20
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A^CORtf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certiflcata holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the f
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, su^ect to the terms and conditions of th
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In. lieu of si,

>ollcy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed,
e policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
ch endorsement(s).

mOOUCER

AHT insurance. A Baldwin Risk Partner
458 South Ave
Whitman MA 02382

Lleen$«»; CA#0858748

COMTAa
NAME: . .. . -

e,H.. 800-646-4807 wc. Mo): 781-447-7230
IVML
ADDRESS:

MSURERIS) AFFORaNG COVERAGE NAICf

MSURER A: Federal Insurance Comoany 20281

MSURED JOHNSNO^I

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.
John Snow, Inc.
VUorld Education, Inc.
44 Famsworlh Street
Boston MA 02210-1206

MSURER B: ACE American Insurance Comoariv 22667

MSURER c: Great Northern Insurance Compa 20303

MSURER D:

MSURER E:

MSURER F:

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 314957123 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

TYPE OF WSURANCE I'Util'.Viti POUCY NUMBER LIMirS

COMMERCIAL GB4 ERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE OCXXJR

6ENL AGGR^TE LMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY I I r^LOC
OTHER:

25873320 a/a/2023 10/1/2024 EACH OCCURRENCE
TORXGETDRSgTCT
PREMCE8 I& occffWcO

MEDE»'{Anycnepgio»g

PERSONAL& AOV NJURY.

GQCRAL AGGREGATE

PRCXXXn^S • COMPXX> AGG

MUgMUSINCLiUMIT
(Eb ■cdQ»t>

51.000,000

51,000.000

510.000

51.000,000

52.000.000

AUTOMOaiE UABILITY

ANY AUTO

73S46634 9/9/2023 10/1/2024 51.000.000

BODILY IHIURY (Per person) 51.000,000

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY
HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-CnVN^
AUTOSOILY

BODILY INJURY (Per ecddent)
T«HaPCm7WHR5E

liPeracddenn

51,000.000

51.000,000

UMBRELLAUAB

EXCESS LIAB

. OED

(XCUR

aAlMSJMOE

79881066 9/9/2023 10/1/2024 EACHO(XURRENCE 520,000.000

AGGREGATE 5 20,000.000

RETENTION 5
•m—n—n5T*nSTATUTE IeR ■WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' UABlUTV
ANYPR0PRlET0RIPAR1NERIE)IECU'nvE
OFFCERACXeEREXCLUDED?
(M«e«toty In NH)
R yes, descrioe under
DESCRIPrXX OF OPERATIONS bCtow

71733182 9W2023 10/1/2024
Y/N

□ N/A
EL EACHACaOENT

EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYS 51.000,000

EL DISEASE - PCXJCY LIMIT 51.000.000

Errors & Omissions/Cyter D88621772 11/30/2023 10/1/2024 PorOccursrve
Aosreeste

S.000.000
5.000.000

DESCRX>1lON OF OPERATKMS / LCKIATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD101. AddlUMMl Renurks Schedule, iwy be attached It more space Is required)

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord NH 03301

-  - 1 — -

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CUVNCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

A1ITHORUFH RFPRFSFMr ATIVF

ACORO 2S(2016A)3)
©1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORO
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JSI Research and Training Institute Inc.

Mission Statement

JSI Research and Training Institute was incorporated in 1987 as a 501©3 non-profit
organization in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Our mission is to alleviate public
hedth problems both in the United States and in developing countries around the world
through applied research, technical assistance.and training. JSI maintains offices in Boston,
Massachusetts; Washington, D.C; Denver, Colorado and Bow, New Hampshire; as well as
seven overseas offices in developing nations. Since its inception, JSI has successfully
completed more than 400 contracts in the health and human service fields.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOUOATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSmON

September 30, 2022

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 114.171.804

Receivables for program work $ 52,415,169

Field advances - program $ 295.716

Employee advances $ 128,231

Vendor advances $ -

Inventory $ 94,095,116

Prepaid expenses $ 8,241.061

Total current assets 269.347,097

Property and equipment, net $ 2.450,128

Loan receivable $ 26,000

Other Assets $ 607,089

Total assets 272,430,314

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings $ 71,581,186

Accrued vacation $ 2,581,182

Advances for program work $ 118,614,621

Notes payable $ -

Contingencies $ m

Total current liabilities 192,776,989

Net assets:

Without donor restrictions $ 78,902,658

With donor restrictions $.. 750,667 ,

Unrestricted

Total net assets 79,653,325

Total liabilities and net assets $ 272,430,314
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2022

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Public support and revenue

Public support:

Global Fund

Govemment grants and contracts:
U.S. Govemment

Commonwealtfi of Massachusetts

Other grants and contracts
Program income

Contributions

Net assets released ftem restriction

Gain on forgiveness of debt

In-kind project contributions
Other income

Interest income

Total support and revenue

Expenses

Program sen/ices:
Intemational programs

Domestic programs

Total program services

Supporting services
Management and general
Fundralsing

Total supporting services

Other Expenses

Unallowable

Total other expenses

Total expenses

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions

Increase in net assets with donor restrictions

Increase (decrease) in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

519,919,583

216,420,899

9,420,591

85,315,96!

182,784

2,492,119

1,165

2,031,763

1,600

118,737

835,905,202

750,754,663

37,361,211

788,115,875

33,382,268

1,134,482

34,516,750

488,476

488,476

823,121,100

12,784,102

202,250

12,986,352

66,666.972

79,653,324
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JSl Research and Training Institute, inc.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2022

Program services Supporting services Total enpenses

International

programs

Domestic

programs Total

Management
and genera! Fundralsing 2022

Commodities 468,455.677 468,455,677 .. . 468,455,677
Freighl Costs 53,466,245 - 53.466.245 . - 53,466.245

Salaries 37,113.525 22,966,785 60,080,310 14,783,506 954,645 75,818,461
Consultants 16.584,797 6,627,483 23.212.280 2,610,360 24,303 25,846.943
Cooperating national salaries 38.225,002 192,783 38.417.785 432,068 - 38,849,852
Travel 18,922,317 630,242 19.552.559 333,691 - 19,886,250

Allowance and training 6,447.868 175,905 6.623.773 657,825 21,311 7,302,909
Sutjgrants 29,745,983 204,079 29.950,062 36,025 1,778 29.987,865

Subcontracts 47,175,365 4.208,684 51,384,050 - - 51.384,050
Equipment, material and supplies 8,004,374 125,604 8,129,978 674,690 3,435 8,808,103
Ottier costs 22,222,640 2,228,806 24,451,446 13.185.895 129,010 37,766,351
Information Technology - - 318,141 - 318,141
Non-Commodity 871,175 - 871,175 871,175
Quality Assurance 6,623 • 6,623 - 6,623
Incidence - - -• - -

Equipment over S5K 1,238,020 4 m- 1,238,020 - 1,238,020
VAT 243,289 840 244,129 - - 244,129

In4(ind project expenses 2,031,763 2,031.763 — - 2.031.763
Depreciation. - - - 350,066 - 350,066

Total expense $  750,754,663 $  37,361,211 %  788.115,875 $  33.382,268 $  1,134,482 $ 822,632,624
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JSI Research and Training institute, inc.

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2022

2022

Cash flows from operating activities:

increase (decrease) in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Gain on forgiveness of debt
Depreciation

Contributions restricted for iong-term investment

(increase) decrease in receivables for program work
(Increase) decrease in field advances - program

(Increase) decrease in vendor advances

(Increase) decrease in employee advances

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
(Increase) decrease in other assets

(Increase) decrease in inventory
increase (decrease) in accounts payable and payroll withholdings
Increase (decrease) in accrued vacation
Increase (decrease) in advances for program work

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Contributions restricted for long-term investment
Proceeds from loan payable

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Loans made

Loan advances

Loans repaid

Acquisition of property and equipment
inherent contribution net of cash acquired

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

12,986352

353.079

(200,000)

(10.452.547)

(129,016)

(31,876)

(5,884.756)

(112,383)

(8,643,634)

(3,100,564)

452,193

32,425,605

17,662,453

200,000

200,000

(80,460)

(106,460)

17,755,993

96,415,811

114,171,804
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Consolidated Financial Statements and

Report of Independent Certified Public
Accountants and Reports in
Compliance with Uniform Guidance

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
Affiliates

September 30, 2021
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@ Grant Thornton

OJUUrr THORNTON LLP

75 Siato SVMt. 13^ Floor

BostorvMA 02109

D ♦1 617 723 7900

F  ♦1 617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on the financial statements

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of JSI Research and Training

Institute, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) and affiliates (the "Entity"^, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the

related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in

all material respects, the financial position of the Entity as of September 30, 2021, and
the changes in its net assets and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS)
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States {Govemment
Auditing Standards). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to
our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to
evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as a going concern for
one year after the date the financial statements are available to be issued.

GTXOM Grant Thornton LLP is the U.S. member rrm of Grant TTwmion Iruernational Ltd (GTIL). GTIL and each of its mambar rams
are separata legal entitles and are not a worldivida partnership.
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Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, Intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

•  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in

the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Entity's ability to continue as
a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements. Such supplementary information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures.
These additional procedures included comparing and reconciling such information
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directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements

themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with US GAAS. In our
opinion, the accompanying supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other reporting required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated June 24, 2022 on our consideration of the Entity's Internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Entity's internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24, 2022



OocuStgn Envelope 10; 5B121F4D-B945-4D63-A47E-BD6D7474D828

JSI Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2021

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Receivables for program work

Field advances - program

Employee advances

Inventory

Prepaid expenses '

Total current assets

Property and equipment, net

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Accrued vacation

Advances for program work

Total current liabilities

Net assets

Without donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$  96,415,811

44,323.084

166.700

96,355

85,451,482

2,356,305

228,809,737

2,722,747

494,706

$  232,027,190

$  77,042,213

2,128,990

86,189,016

165,360,219

66,118,555

548.416

66,666,971

$ 232,027,190

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year ended September 30, 2021

NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Support and revenue:

Public support:

Global Fund $ 424,622,326

Government grants and contracts:

U.S. Government 149,829,898

Commonwealth of Massachusetts 7.341.579

Other grants and contracts 69,804,737

Program income 96,124

Contributions 261,599

Net assets released from restriction 78,524

Gain on forgiveness of debt 1.074,400

In-kind project contributions 1,834,514

Other income 1,999

Interest income 97,932

Total support and revenue 655,043,632

Expenses:

Program services:

International programs 580,625,338

Domestic programs 29,137,111

Total program services 609,762,449

Supporting services:

Management and general 34,127,773

Fundraising 1,080,428

Total supporting services 35,208,201

Other expenses:

Unallowable costs 345.188

Total expenses 645,315,838

Change in net assets without donor restrictions 9.727,794

NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Contributions, net of net asset releases of $78,524 229.766

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS 9,957,560'

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

56.709.411

$  66.666,971

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

7
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JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

Year ended September 30, 2021

Program Services Supporting Services

International

Programs

Domestic

Programs Total

Management

and General - Pundrablng Total

Commodities $ 374.776.813 $ S  374,776,813 $ $ S 374,776,813

Freight costs 34.169.444 - 34,169,444 - - 34,169,444

Salaries 28.610.134 14,840,513 43.450,647 10,036,241 893,143 54,380,031

Consultants 16,418,084 7,634,972 24.053,056 2,125,852 30,687 26,209,595

Cooperating national salaries 38,458,259 273,800 38,732,059 395.260 39,127,319

Travel 3,609,187 187,076 3,796,263 39.083 - 3,835,346

Allowance and training - 3,801,160 132,510 3,933,670 531,959 - 4,465.629

Subgrants 18,307,467 700,914 19,008,381 50,553 42,873 19,101,807

Subcontracts 25,529,700 3,313,466 28,843,166 - - 28,843,166

Equipment, material and supplies 3.024,350 129,075 3,153,425 78,439 1,986 3,233.850

Other costs 30,461,762 1,924,785 32,386,547 20,054,427 111,739 52,552,713

Information technology 950 - 950 469,309 - 470,259

Non-commodity 1,606,244 - 1,606,244 - -
1,606,244

Quality assurance 17,270 - 17,270 - -
17,270

In-kind project expenses 1,834,514 - 1,834,514 - - 1,834,514

Depredation - - - 346,650 - 346,650

Total expense S 580,625,338 $  29,137,111 S  609,762,449 S  34,127,773 $  1,080,428 % 644,970,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

8
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended September 30, 2021

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities;

Gain on forgiveness of debt

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Depreciation

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in receivables for program work

Decrease in field advances - program

Increase in employee advances

Increase in prepaid expenses

Increase in other assets

increase in inventory

Decrease in accounts payable and payroll withholdings

Decrease in accrued vacation

Increase in advances for program work

Net cash provided by operating activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

$  9,957,560

(1,074,400)

87,708

346,650

(14,705,893)

3,691,792

(92,113)

(348,177)

(229,776)

(8,230,710)

(10,600,522)

(84,561)

36,330,138

15.047,696

15,047,696

81,368,115

$  96,415,811

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated financial statement.

9
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

September 30, 2021

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. (the "Organization") was incorporated in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts on April 11,1979. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. provides education and research
primarily to non-profit health and human service agencies both in the Uriited States and abroad. Current
funding is principally from the United States Agency for International Development ("AID") and the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

JS! Research and Training Institute, Inc. is the sole member of World Education, Inc. and The Partnership
for Supply Chain Management, Inc. ("Affiliates"). JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. is accorded with
such powers as are typical for a sole member including the power of appointment and removal of the
Affiliates' board of trustees, the right to approve amendments to the bylaws and certificate of incorporation,
and the right to approve any merger, consolidation, dissolution or transfer of substantial assets of Affiliates.

World Education, Inc. was founded in 1951 and incorporated in the state of New Jersey. Working In
partnership with community, national, and international agencies in Asia, Africa, and the United States, it
provides professional assistance in the design and implementation of non-formal adult education programs.
These programs integrate functional education with relevant problem-solving aspects of individual growth
and national development such as health, nutrition, family planning, childcare, refugee education,
agricultural practices, literacy, and Income generation. World Education, Inc's financial data is consolidated
utilizing its fiscal year-end financial statements, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The Partnership for Supply Chain Management ("PfSCM") was Incorporated on February 14, 2005, under
the laws of Massachusetts. PfSCM began operations on October 1. 2005 as a non-profit organization
established by JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Management Sciences for Health, Inc. On
October 11, 2018, Management Sciences for Health, Inc. discontinued their relationship v\rith PfSCM and
JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. became the sole member of PfSCM.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates are tax exempt organizations under 501(c)(3) of
the Internal Revenue Code ("IRC") and file separate unconsolidated tax returns.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES "

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. as
well as World Education, Inc. and PfSCM, its affiliates (collectively referred to as the Organization).
Significant intra-entity accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared utilizing the accrual basis
of accounting and include the accounts of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and its affiliates in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP). Net
assets, revenues, and expenses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions. Accordingly, the net assets of the Organization and the changes thereof are classified and
reported as follows;

Nfit Aasats Without Donor Restrictions - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Contributions, grants, and income whose use by the Organization
has been limited by donors or grantors to a specific time period or purpose.

10
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JSl Research and Training Institute, inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results may differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all monies in banks and highly liquid investments with maturity dates of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair
value because of the short maturities of those financial instruments. Total cash held in foreign accounts
was $3,461,909 at September 30. 2021.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment owned by the organization are reported on the basis of cost less accumulated
depreciation. Acquisitions of property and equipment in excess of $5,000 are capitalized. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method calculated to extinguish the book value of the respective assets
over their estimated useful lives (5-7 years) of the related assets. Property and equipment purchased with
grant funds v^ere ownership rests with the donor is expensed at the time of purchase and is returned to
the donor or disposed of in accordance with the terms of the grant and/or donor permissions at the
conclusion of the grant period.

Recent Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

In fiscal year 2021, the Organization adopted ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
which outlines a single comprehensive revenue model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts v/ith customers. The guidance supersedes most current revenue recognition guidance.
Including industry-specific guidance, and ensures that entities appropriately reflect the consideration to
which they expect to be entitled in exchange for goods and services, by allocating transaction price to
identified performance obligations, and recognizing that revenue as performance obligations are satisfied.
The Organization applied the standard using the modified retrospective transition method resulting in a
$2,275,600 reduction of net assets without restrictions as of the adoption date (October 1, 2020).

As part of the adoption of the ASU, the Organization elected to use the folloviring transition practical
expedients: (i) completed contracts that begin and end in the same annual reporting period have not been
restated; (ii) the Organization used the known transaction price for completed contracts; (ill) to exclude
disclosures of transaction prices allocated to remaining performance obligations when the Organization
expects to recognize such revenue for all periods prior to the date of initial application of the ASU; and (iv)
the company has reflected the aggregate of all contract modifications that occurred prior to the date of initial
application when identifying the satisfied and unsatisfied performance obligations, determining the
transaction price, and allocating the transaction price.

Revenue Recognition

Grants and Contacts

V

The majority of the Organization's revenues are derived from contracts, cooperative agreements, and
grants with The Global Fund to Fight AIDS Tuberculosis and Malaria (the Global Fund), and U.S.
government agencies, primarily USAID and the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

The Organization recognizes revenue from external organizations for services provided under exchange
and non-exchange grants and contracts. Unconditional grants, contracts, and contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period received in the appropriate net asset category, based on the existence or absence

11
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

of donor imposed restrictions. If donor imposed restrictions are present, the associated revenue is reported
as an increase in net assets with donor restrictions and are reciassified to net assets without donor
restrictions when the restrictions are met. Grants and contracts revenues whose restrictions are met in the
same reporting period are reported as net assets without donor restriction.

Revenues from non-exchange transactions may be subject to conditions in the form of both a barrier to
entitlement and a refund of amounts paid (and a release from obligation to make future payments). The
Organization recognizes revenue earned from conditional non-exchange grants and contracts as these
conditions are satisfied. At September 30, 2021, the Organization had $247,832,020 of conditional grants
and contracts not recognized as revenue in the statements of activities.

Revenues from exchange transactions are recognized as the Organization satisfies performance
obligations, which in some cases, mirrors the timing of when related costs are incurred. In the case of the
procurement and delivery of commodities revenues are recognized upon receipt by the customer. As of
September 30, 2021, the Organization has $57,626,102 of deferred revenue related to exchange
transactions which will be recognized as revenue upon completion of delivery of commodities and receipt
by the customer. This deferred revenue in included within advances for program work in the accompanying
statement of financial position.

Donated Materials and Services

Donated materials and services are recorded as in-kind project contributions at their estimated fair market
value as of the date of receipt and as an expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities.
Donated services are recognized if the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require
specialized skills that are provided by individuals possessing those skills and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the IRC and is not a private
foundation as described in Section 509. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is included in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

The Organization has evaluated its tax positions and believes that there would be no material changes to
the results of its operations or financial position as a result of an audit by the applicable taxing authorities,
federal or state. The Organization has filed all of its known and required retums in a timely manner including
as permitted allowed extensions.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., World Education, Inc. and PfSCM file separate unconsolidated
tax retums. JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and PfSCM file tax returns based on a September 30
year end and World Education, Inc. files its tax return t>ased on a June 30 year end.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional
basis in the consolidated statements of activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among
the programs and supporting services benefited. Each functional classification includes all expenses related
to the underlying operations by natural classification. Natural expenses attributable to more than one
functional expense category are allocated using a variety of cost allocation techniques.

12
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

Foreign Currency Transactions

Expenses of international operations are measured generally using local currency. Expenses are translated
to USD using the first in, first out method of exchange based on the bank rate assigned at transfer. As a
result, foreign currency transaction gains and losses are negligible and are included as direct program
expenses.

Receivables for Program Work

Receivables for program work are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding
balances. Management provides for probable uncollectable amounts through a provision for bad debt
expense and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for doubtful accounts at September 30, 2021 was $0. Included in receivables for program work
is $34,790,746 of amounts billed and $9,532,337 of amounts unbilled.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases, which requires a lessee to recognize a right-of-
use asset and lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in its balance
sheet/statement of financial position. The guidance also expands the required quantitative and qualitative
disclosures surrounding leases. The ASU is effective for fiscal year 2023 for the Organization. The
Organization is evaluating the impact of the new guidance on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

The Organization maintains demand deposits and money market funds at financial institutions. At times,
certain balances held in these accounts may not be fully guaranteed by the United States government. The
uninsured portions of cash and money market accounts are backed solely by the assets of the financial
institution. Therefore, the failure of a financial institution could result in a financial loss to the Organization.
However, the Organization has not experienced losses on these accounts in the past and management
believes the risk of loss, if any, to be minimal.

NOTE D - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Property and equipment and accumulated depreciation account balances as of September 30, 2021:

Accumulated

Cost Depreciation Net

Furniture and equipment

Leasehold improvements

$  592,816 $  583,779 $ 9,037
3,380,365 666,655 2,713,710

$  3,973,181 $  1,250,434 $ 2,722,747

Depreciation expense was $346,650 for the year ended September 30, 2021.

13
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

NOTE E - ADVANCES FOR PROGRAM WORK

Advances for program work consist of the following at September 30, 2021:

Other - non-govemmental;
Bill and Mellnda Gates Foundation $ 19,139,937
Various donors 17,133,997
Global Fund 48,415,977

Doris Duke Charitable Foundation 1,499,105

$  86,189,016

Advances for program work represent refundable advances of cash related from non-governmental
organizations. They are reported as advances because there Is typically a barrier placed by the granting
organization, as well as a right of return If the funds are not used In accordance with the terms of the
arrangement with the funding organization. Once the barriers are overcome and there Is no longer a right
of return, revenue Is recognized.

NOTE F - DEBT

Citizens Bank

World Education, Inc. has a revolving line of credit with a bank with a borrowing limit of up to $500,000. The
revolving line of credit was renewed on August 17, 2021. The loan is payable on demand. Interest is
charged by utilizing a fluctuating rate based on the LIBOR (Advantage) rate plus 2.50%. The line of credit
remains In effect until May 31, 2022 and annually thereafter Is contingent upon performance. The loan Is
collaterallzed by a first priority interest in all the assets of World Education, Inc. No funds were borrowed
during 2021 and as a result, as of September 30. 2021, the outstanding balance Is $0 and no Interest was
incurred on this loan during the year ended September 30, 2021.

John Snow, inc.

World Education, Inc. has an unsecured revolving line of credit with John Snow, Inc. (a related party) with
a borrowing limit of up to $1,000,000. The loan was renewed on July 1,2019. Interest Is charged by utilizing
a fluctuating rate based on the current prime rate plus 0.25%. The loan is payable on demand and, In any
event, on or prior to June 30, 2022. The loan Is not collaterallzed. No funds were borrowed during the year
and as a result, as of June 30, 2021, the outstanding balance Is $0. No Interest was Incurred on this loan
during the year ended June 30, 2021.

Loan Payable - Paycheck Protection Act

In April, 2020, World Education, Inc. ("WEI") was granted a loan (the "Loan") in the aggregate amount of
$1,074,400, pursuant to the Paycheck Protection Program (the "PPP") under Division A, Title I of the
CARES Act.

The Loan, which was In the form of a Note dated April 23, 2020, was scheduled to mature on April 23, 2022
and bore Interest at a rate of 1.00% per annum, payable monthly commencing In February 2020. Under
the terms of the PPP, the Loan was fully forgiven as of June 15, 2021, which Is reflected as gain on
forgiveness of debt In the accompanying statement of activities.

14
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

NOTE G • CONTINGENCIES

In accordance with the terms of Its federal and state grants and contracts, the records of the Organization
are subject to audit. The Organization is, therefore, contingently liable for any disallowed costs.
Management believes that any adjustment, which might result from such an audit, would be immaterial to
the consolidated financial statements.

JSI Research and Training Institute. Inc. is a co-borrower {with a related party) of a demand loan with no
balance due at September 30, 2021.

Provisional indirect cost rates are negotiated with the AID on an annual basis. As of September 30, 2021,
actual indirect cost rates have been approved by AID for JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. through
December 31, 2015 and World Education, Inc. through June 30,2018. Based on favorable past experience,
management believes the effects of changes to the overhead rates, if any, would not be material to the
consolidated financial statements.

The outbreak of COVID-19 has caused disruption in operations of businesses domestically and globally.
In response the Organization implemented cost savings and other measures to reduce operating expenses
and ensure adequate liquidity. Due to the uncertainty of the continued spread of the virus and economic
outlook, there may be short-term and long-term implications for operations of the Organization.

NOTE H - NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Donor restricted net assets of as of September 30, 2021 are restricted for use in specific programs and/or
projects that are specified by the donor.

NOTE I - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

John Snow, Inc.

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. ("R&T") and John Snow, Inc. ("JSI, Inc.") (a non-exempt
corporation) purchase consulting services from each other. The President and Director of R&T is the sole
stockholder of JSI, Inc. The two companies bill each other at the same rates that they bill federal and state
governments.

During the year ended September 30, 2021, JSI, Inc. billed R&T $22,395,454 for consulting services
(technical support). This amount is reflected under program services - consulting totaling $18,511,741 and
program services - other costs totaling $3,888,435, on the consolidated statements of functional expenses.
In addition, during the year end September 30,2021, R&T performed consulting services (technical support)
for JSI, Inc. totaling $7,443,577.

As of September 30, 2021 the R&T was owed $762,616 from JSI.

The two companies also share facilities and pool various overhead expenses. For the year ended
September 30, 2021, R&T incurred $26,151,534 of overhead expenses (supporting services), of which
$10,887,356 was its share of JSI, Inc. incurred costs.

R&T is a co-borrower with JSI, Inc. on a commercial demand loan-revolving line of credit with an expiration
date of May 31, 2022, which allows for borrowings up to $6,500,000. The loan is collateralized by a security
agreement with a first position lien on all corporate assets of R&T and JSI, Inc. including assignment of
promissory notes and security documents between the two companies. Interest is charged by utilizing a
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

fluctuating rate based on LIBOR (Advantage) plus 2.00% payable monthly In arrears, which at
September 30, 2021 was 2.09%. At September 30, 2021, there was no outstanding balance on this loan.

World Education, Inc. has an agreement with John Snow, Inc. whereby John Snow, Inc. will provide
administrative and technical support as requested from time to time by WEI, on arms-length terms as
agreed by WEI and JSI. Transactions Ijetween World Education, Inc. and John Snow, Inc. for the year
ended September 30, 2021 are summarized as follows;

Administrative and technical support $ 1,671,428
Other direct charges (including rent of $1,088,603) 1,493,832

$  3,165,260

The agreement is on a year-to-year basis and can be terminated by either party upon 90 days written notice
to the other.

Other

The Organization has an agreement with a related company to purchase services. Transactions with this
company were charged to sub-contracts expense and are as follows for the year ended September 30,
2021:

The Manoff Group, Inc. (a non-exempt corporation; 40% owned by
John Snow, Inc.) $ 1,564,751

$  1,564,751

NOTE J - RETIREMENT PLANS

R&T has a defined contribution profit sharing/401 (k) plan covering substantially all of its employees. R&T
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
In addition, employees receive a 100% match on the first 2% of contributions made to the plan. Employees
who are contributing less than 2% of their pay to their retirement account are automatically enrolled at 2%
either at the time of hire, or annually in July. Pension expense was $2,656,279 for the year ended
September 30, 2021.

WEI has a defined contribution tax sheltered annuity plan coverlrig substantially all of its employees. WEI
contributes an amount equal to 7% of the employee's monthly earnings, funded with each month's payroll.
Additional voluntary contributions may be made by the employees. Participants of the plan are fully and
immediately vested when contributions are made. Pension costs incurred by World Education, Inc. were
$392,399 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

NOTE K - COMMITMENTS

Operating Leases

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. leases space for general offices under operating leases
expiring from 2022 through 2026. The leases contain renewal options for periods of up to five years.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

During the year ended September 30, 2021, rent expense under long-term lease obligations were
$622,797. Future obligations over the primary terms of the Company's long-term leases as of
September 30, 2021 are:

2022 $ 450,718
2023 396,612

2024 155,324

2025 160,680

2026 166,036

$  1,329,370

World Education, Inc. leases space for general offices on a year-to-year basis. Rent expense for the year
ended June 30, 2021 was $1,165,904.

NOTE L - CONCENTRATION OF FUNDING

The Organization receives a majority of its funding through contracts and grants with various departments
and agencies of the federal government.

The Organization received 10% or more of its revenues and support from the following sources for the year
ended September 30, 2021:

% of Total

Revenue Income

The Global Fund (PfSCM) $ 424,622,326 65%
U.S. Agency for International Development (R&T and WEI) $ 128,400,664 20%

The JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and World Education, Inc. received $128,400,664 from U.S.
Agency for International Development as of September 30, 2021, v4iich represents approximately 55% of
total income for those entities.

NOTE M - LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF RESOURCES

The Organization maintains a policy of structuring its financial assets to be available as its general
expenditures, liabilities and other obligations come due. Given the project-based nature .of the
Organization's work, the annual budget is structured to break even and ensure that there are sufficient
inflows to cover budgeted outflows each year. Any use of the Organization's reserve, which is minimal, is
subject to management's review and approval.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliates

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of September 30, 2021, reduced by amounts
not available for general use within one year due to contractual or donor-imposed restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,415,811
Receivables for program work 44,323.084

Total financial assets available within one year < 140,738,895

Less contractually restricted and donor restricted assets 86.737,432

Total financial assets available to management for
general expenditures within one year $ 54,001,463

The Organization also has two committed lines of credit totaling $8 million, which it could draw upon in the
event of an unanticipated liquidity need.

NOTE N - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through June 24, 2022, the date on which the
consolidated financial statements were available to be issued. On November 29, 2021, the CEO and
Founder of John Snow, Inc. donated his ownership interest in John Snow, Inc. and its affiliates to the
Organization. Accordingly the Organization became the sole shareholder of John Snow, Inc., as such, it
will be Included in the Organization's consolidated financial statements starting fiscal year 2022.
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JSI RMtarch and Training Insdtuta. he.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andtd Sapttmbcr M, 2021

Fadaral Grarttorffaaa-lhrouah GrantorfProoram Tltla Aoancv or Pass-throuoh NumiMr

Fadaral

AaaMtanct

Listlmsa

Fadaral

Exoandlturas

Total Subcontract

Exoanaai

U.S. AGENCY FOR IHTERNATK)NAL DEVELOPMENT

Olract'Grant:

USAID Fonign Aashtanc* lor PrD(xsnu Ovarsut;
UGANDA NUMAT 617-A-OO-Oe-OOOOMX) 98.001 »  (1.627) S

NIGERIA TSHIP 620-A-00-09-00014-00 98.X1 (16.757) -

SPRING AICM3AA-A-11-00031 98.001 (14.812) (14.812)

Advartdng Partnora A1CM3AA-A-12-00047 98.001 (96.215) (70,506)

Uv« Loam & Play AIOOAA-L-12-00003 98.001 (2.210)

PAKISTAN HSSP AID-391-A.13430002 98.001 4.865 -

AJDSPraa AIDX)AAVL-14-00046 98.001 (78.270) -

TANZANIA CHSS AJD-621-A-14-000004 98.001 1.300 -

ZambiaUSAlDOiacovarHaa&n AJO-611-A-1d00004 98.001 22.422.542 324.779

nmor-Latte RBHS A1D-472-A-16-00001 98.001 485.067 .

Ghana HIV/AIDS AiI>«41-A-16-00007 98.001 4.581.556 1.145.953

Uadagaacar CCH AID-687-A-154XXX)l 98.001 4.416.221 254.815

BuMHoaRhyCiUM AiD-OAA-A-17-0002S 98.001 1.164.732 483.923

Pakistan IHSS-SD AID-391-A-17-00002 98.001 10.000.606 1.590,485

USAC Adv. Nutrition 7200AA18C00070 98.001 21.724.216 9.703.067

Parewshipt Plus 720aAA18CA00032 98.001 2.560.072 2.465.053

Kytyyz CuaTubarculotis 7201t5ligCA00001 98.001 3.675.035 856.560

TIFATB 720CIAA19CA00013 98.001 3.239.631 1.000.180

0FDACBPMC2 720FDA19GRX261 98.001 353.540 2.591

MRITE 7200AA20CA00017 98.001 6.781.001 2.848,903

CHISU 7200AA20CA00009 98.001 3.034.431 293.749

USAICWLaot MCH-N Activity 72O43921CA0CO1 98.001 10.378 .

Total Diract Grants- USAID 84.245.306 20.884,730

Paa»4hrough Grant:

USAID Foraign Aasistanca for Programs Ovarsaas:

Famiy HaaOh IntamatI EpCVMMC CA«7200AA19CA00002 98.001 690.332

Farniy Haalih Intamatl EpC Global 7200AA19CA00002 98.001 2.175.005

PRB USAID PRB Momantum 2C 7200AA20CA00003 98.001 1.666.246

HaarSarxi Aliartca IntX HAINigaria TMAO 72062020CA00001 98.001 57.831

Haartand Alianca hfl HAI Nigaria TMA 202012021 72062020CA00001 98.001 410.264

John Snow Haalth Zambia ZAM-Haalth Activity 720ei112lCA00001 98.001 256.426

NCBA CLUSA Sanagal FTF Cult Nut 72068518CA00001 98.001 298.067

PSCM Global Fund PPM N/A 98.001 3.020

PSCM PfSCM CKants N/A 98.001 794,388

Paladium htantatiortal Data Fl 7200AA19CA00004 98.X1, i.eoe.ne

Paladium Intarrtational lAPHL HP'Grant AIDOAA-A-1S00051 98.001 32.686

Paladkan Intarrtatiorul HP* lAPHL 11 A1DOAA-A-1SO0051 98.001 242.852 16.800

Pathftndar htarrtational Ethiopia TRANSFORM AJC)663A1700002 98.001 4,910,626

Tha Trustaas ol TUFTS Col STOP SpOovar 7200AA20CA00032 98.001 922.468

Total Pass-through Grants- USAID 14.266.987 16.800

U.S. AGENCY FOR INTERNATIONAL DEVELOPMENT Total 98.S12.293 20,901,530

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DIract Grant;

AdvarKirtg Systam hnprovamanis for Kay Issuai In Woman's Haalth

DHHS Womans Haalth-NTC ASTWH2000904)1-00 93.088 2.275.441 220.000

OHHS Womans Haalth-NTC ASTWH200090J)2-00 93.088 5.578 -

2.281.019 220.000

HIV-Ralstad Training and Tachnical Assistanca -

HRSA HIV htegralad Ping U69KA30144 93.145 128.311 89,500

HRSA HIV Integraled PIrtg U69KA30144-04 93.145 165

HRSA HIV htagralad Phg U09KA30144-OS 93.145 550.693

HRSA RWHAP ACE Haalth LH U69KA30143 93.145 76.892 15.000

HRSA Planr^CHATT U69HA390S5 93.145 90.598 43.415

HRSA PlanrWtgCHATT U69HA390SS-01 93.145 379.558 9.785

1.226.217 157.700

Famdy Planning Parsonnal Training -

FPNTC-SDI FPTPA006028-03 93.260 2.326 .

rsJaX-NTC FPTPA006030 93.260 2.657.035 44,000

2.S59.361 44.000
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JS( RHtarch and Training matttula, hic.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOTTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar andtd Stptambtr 30,20M

Fadaral OrantortPaaa-thfouoh OrantorfProoram Tltla

HMfth Systams Strartgowrtlno and HIV/AtDS PravaKion, Cara and Traatmant ■

KRSA RRHO

HRSARRHO

KRSA RRHO

Taanaga Pragnancy Pravantion Program

OHHS

OHHS

HIV Emaigancy Rafaf Proiact Grants:

RWHAP ACE Haatm La

HIV Cars Fomxia Grants:

RWHAP ACE Haalth U

SpadH Projaca of National SignUcanca:

SSCtorPWHandOUO

SSCIorPWHindOUD

SSCtorPWHandOUO

TPP^C

TPP-NTC

Aoancv Of Paaa^hrouoh Numbar

UH5HA30789

UH5HA3078SO3

UH5HA3078&O4

1 TPSAH000006-01-00

TPSAH000006-02-00

U69HA30ia3-04

U6SHA30143O5

U90HA3319CM)1

U90HA3319CM32

U90HA33190-03

Fadaral

Asatatinca

Uatlnoa »

93.286

93.266

93.266

93.297

93.297

93.914

93.917

93.928

93.628

93.928

Fadaral

Expandlturaa

192,142

(488)
S7e,503

770,156

1.302.843

4,035

1.306,878

(7,560)

275.175

(Ml)

2.104,895

105,015

2.209,259

Total Oiract Grants- Oapartmant of Haaltn and Human Sarvicas 10,920,505

Total Subcontract

Eaoanaaa

(7,500)

38.000

359,021

20,482

379.503

831,703

Paaa-tnrowgh GrarM:

PuOBc HaaKh EmargarKy Praparadnass:

NHDHHS

Environmantal PuMc Haacn and EmargarKy Rasporwa:
MA OepL of Pubic Haalth

NHDHHS

NHDHHS

PHPS FY21

MDPH Asthma

PHPS19

PHPSFY21

AgfaamaraO7.09.20

RFR 500224

AgraamantO7.09.20

AgraamantQ7.09.20

93.069

93.070

63.070

63.070

87,793

85,740

(400)

68,115 40,520

133.455 40,520

Tachnicsl and Non-Finandal AssistarKa to Haalih Cantars:

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

HRSA

ComnHShCtrCT

Corrvn HBh Cir CT

HfTEQ

HfTEO

HITEQ

HRSA HITEQ ARP

CHCACT Training FY21

CHCACT UDS

U30CS29366

U30CS29366-06

U30CS29366

U3FCS41776

AgraamanlO9.l5,20

AgreamanlQO.14.21

Cooparativa Agraamants to Siaios/rarritories (or tho Coordlnaiion and Davaiopmant of Primary Care Offlcas:

StataofMaina ME DHHS HPSA FY20 000-20-2215

Wyommg OapL o( Haam WVPCOFY20 ORH-0212-0

RIDapLofHaaSh RIEPIFY21-28 7607811

Iniury Pravantion artd Control Rasaarch arvJ Stata arxl Community Based Programs -

Ri OapL 01 Haafth RIEPIFY21-28

Community Programs to Improva Minority Haalth Grant Program -

Boston Madlcal Cantar . Proiact RECOVER Eval

HIV-Raiatad Training and Tachnical Assistanca:

National ABanca ol Stat NASTAD EHE SCP Sub

National Minority AIDS Co ELEVATE

Chidhood Laad Poisor^ Prevention Projects, Stata and Local Chldhood Lead Poisonir>g
Preverrtion and SurveSarKe of Blood Laad Laveb in Children':

NH DHHS PHPS FY21

NH DHHS PHPS FY22

Fandy Planning Services:

MA DapL of Pubic Heaidi

NH DHHS

NY Dept of HaMth

Mississippi State Depi of Health

MDPH FP DaU Sys

NH FPData System FY18

NYS FP Training

MSDH FP Needs Assessment

(grants to States to Support Oral Haalth Workforce Aclivfties •

NH DHHS

NH DHHS

Oral Health Promo

PHPSFY21

7607811

N/A

202DCO-326401.657

Ue9HA3933S

AgreemantO?.09.20

AgreemenlQ7.10.21

1 FPKPA006425^1.00

05-65-90-602010-5530

DOH01-C33229GG-34S00

FPHA006476-02-00

05-95-00-00201(M5270000

AgreementO7.09.20

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.129

93.130

93.130

93.130

93.136

93.137

93.145

93.145

93.197

93.197

93.217

93.217

93.217

93.217

93.236

93.236

60.258

651.262

63.218

13.950

591

683

809.942

32.500

39.986

4.996

n.482

59.480

28.384

82.327

60.715

143.042

38.988

184.207

203.195

48.569

3.842

253.232

96,242

401,685

194.548

29.874

224.420

149.133

30,815

3.908

183,854

45.445

2.625

48.070

70,600

70,800

SubstarKe Abuse artd Merttal Health Services Projects of Regiorul and Natiorral Siyicflcarrce;
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JSI Research and Training hatitute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXFENOnURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year ended September U. 2021

Federal

Aaaiatance Federal

Federal OrantorfPaia-throuah Orantor/Proorim TWe Aoencv or Pese-throuoh Number Ustinos f Exoendltures

AcbcrVBotton Conen Oevel ABCD KIV/SA Eval Agreement^1.11.19 93.243 24.518

NHDHHS BOAS Canter SFYig 92058501 93.243 622.631

Somh End Contmurily SECHCOpioids Agreement^10.15.16 93.243 57.228

Signature Healthcare Brockton OBAT AgreemetU010ri/18 93.243 47.104

UrWeralty ot NH SYT TA. UNH Subaward 1H70TI080192-01 93.243 9.121

Rl Oept oi Bev HBha Oev PFS FY20 3629405 93.243 27.134

Harbor Homes, Itk Harbor Homes TCE MUD Agr»emeniOll.2l.l9 93.243 25.304

Trt-Cotatty Community Rt Host Campaign 1 AgreemeniO5.26.20 93.243 22.850

Woonaodtet Prevenbon Rl Host Campaign 2 AgreemeniO6.05.20 93.243 1.064

Kent County Prevention Rl Host Campaign 4 Agre#m#nt®5.l 9.20 93.243 272

East Bey Regional Rt Host Campaign 5 AgreementOS.14.20 93.243 10.089

Newport County Prevertbon Rl Host Campaign 6 AgreemantOS.l 4.20 93.243 4.732

South County Preverttton Rl Host Campaign 7 AgreementC5.l9.20 93.243 4.998

RCARES RICARES RCSP Evaluation Agreefflent03.4.21 93.243 9,643

Rhode Istand Student RISAS Rl Suidda Prvnticn Agreement08.4.21 93.243 2.854

Hartjor Homes. bK Harbor Homes GBHI Agreement0^2.4.l8 93.243 43.019

912.561

Immunization Cooperative Agreements:

MADepLofPiOic Health High Risk Adult brm CAPACrrYBLD500824M04 93.266 21.643

MA DepL o( Pubic Health MnS Support Desk PRF61 93.268 383,701

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AgreementQ7.09.20 93.268 41.479

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 Aoreement07.09.20 93.268 18.415

NH CMHS PHPS FY22 AgreemerH07.10.21 93.268 18.243

483.481

Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grartts •

Boys & Girts Club o( Soiat Souhegan Vaiey Eval WA 93.276 8.293

East Boston Neighboihood E Boston Vapa & MJ Prav i AgreementO8.4.20 93.276 15 339

21632

Chid Development artd, SurveBance, Research and Prevenbon •
Aroostook County Action MEJVN Ai^eementC7.23.18 93.312 16.071

Epademiotogy artd Lat>oralory Capacity for Infectious Diseases (ELC):
MA OepL Of Public Health MDPH HAI FY20 500824 93.323 152.410

MA OepL of Public Health MA DPH Covid Dash Support PRF61 93.323 125,696

NHDKHS r SORH NH Project FIrtbine AgreenwitQ 12.1.20 93.323 114,966

NH DHHS PHPSFY22 AgreerrtentCT. 10.21 93.323 122.443

515.515

National and State Tobacco Control Program

NHDHHS SORH • Com Based Tob Prtv AgreementQ11.5.20 93.387 166.109

Pubic Heath Emergency Resporue: Cooperabve Agreement for Emergency Response: Public
Health Crisis Response:

NH DHHS PHPSFY21 AyeementC7.09.20 93.354 628,685

21st Certtury Cures Act • Precision Medldne Initiative -

NH DHHS Oral Health Promo 05-95-90-902010-45270000 93.366 66,822

Improving the Health of Americans through Prevention end Management of Diat>etes and Heart
Disease end Stroke:

CT Dapt of Pubic Health CT Chronic Disease «2O2DO021 93.426 312.253

GA Dapl Pubic Haaiih GA DPH CHW Networti Dev 4050CMM1.21213493 93.426 16,639

MA OepL of Public Health MDPH Diabetes 3 PFR 500224 93.426 28,260

NH DHHS Chronic Conditions Multiple-see rtotes 93.426 53,514

NHDHHS SORH Chronic Conditions Agreement04.S.21 93.426 106,812

Stale Of Maine ME Prediebetes Marketing 1 NU58DP006S45-04 93.426 90,227

609,705

Every Student Succeeds AcbPraschooi Devalopmant Granu

School Administrative Uni SAU21 POG 93.434 7,975

United Way of Mass Bey UWGSNA 2849 93.434 54,445

62,420

Innovstive Slate end Local Pubic Health Strategies to prevent and Manege Diabetes and Heart
Otseasa and Stroke:

MA OapL o( Pubic Health MD^ Diabetes RFR 560224 93.435 66.518

Colorado DPH Strategic Planrkrrg 93.435 1.484

70,002

WELL-INTEGRATED SCREENING AND EVALUATION FOR WOMEN ACROSS THE NATION (WISEWOMAN)

NH DHHS SORH Chronic Condllions Agr»ement04.5.21 93.436 35.035

Total Subcontract

Eaoenaea

29.623

5.146

34.769

13.400

8.009

40.204

11.660

51.864
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JSI RMearch and Training Instltiftt, bie.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar tndtd Stpttmbtr 30,2021

Fadaral Grantorffaaa^hfouoh OrantoffProoram TWIa Aoancv Of Paaa-lhrouoh Numbar

Fadtral

Aialatanca

Uatinoa •

FtOarmI

Eapandlturaa

Total Subcontract

Expanaaa

SubstarKO UaoOiaonlor ProvanSon mat Promote* Opioid Recovery and Treatment
(SUPPORT) for Patients and Communities Act •

Rl and ProvWenee Ptantat RICLAS Career Pathways

PPHF: Radal and Elhric Approaches to Community Heaim Program flnanced soMy by PubOc
Prevention arxi HeaSh Funds

Lo«*l Community Health LoWel REACH

36e568S-t

03.738

196.854

S8.O07

75.003

Preventive HeaSh and Health Services Btock Grant funded soMy with Prevention and Public
Healih Funds (PPHF):

Missouri Opt of H&h 8 Sn
Rl OepL of HeaSh

Opioid STR:

MADepLo(PubicHaa«)

NH Alcohol 8 Drug Abuse

Rl Oept of Bev HBhcr Oev

BCBH FY21

Rl EP1 2016

SCR and C(X Grant

NHAOA NH StimUant Surrvnit

Rl WFD SCR FY20

PatJ Coverdel National Acute Stroke Program National Center for Chronic Disease Prevention
and HeaSh Promotion •

MA DepL of Pubic Health Coverdel Chart FY21

MA Dept of Pubic Health Stroke Chart Audits

Capacity SuHing AssistarKe (CBA) tor High-lmpsct HIV Prevention:

CICATELLI ASSOCIATES. INC COCHIPTrair^

CICATELLI ASSOCIATES. INC CAI PROMISE MINI TRAINING

MatemaL Infant and Early Chldhood Home Vistting Grant:

NHDHHS PHPSFY22

National Bioterrorism Hospital Preparedness Program;

NHDHHS PHPSFY21

NHOHHS PHPSFY22

VT Department o( Health 2020 VT CSC

Cancer Prevention end Control Programs for Slate. Territorial and Tribal Organizations:

MA DepL of Pubic HeaSh

NH OHHS

NH OHHS

NH OHHS

Umvarsity Of Vermont

HIV Care Formula Grams:

MA DepL of Pubic Health

MADepLofPiiticHaalih

SpacM Proiects of Nationai SigniflcarKa:

Nabortal ASanca of Stat

NativaHMlnHaalthCare Systems

UiUvarelty of NH

HIV Pravaniion Actfvltias HaaSh Departmant Based:

NHDHHS

MA DepL of Pubic HeaSh

NH OHHS

Prostate Cancer Oispaftty

Oral Health Promo

Chronic CoTKlltioru

SORH Chronic Conditions

UVMCC Pioi Evaiuaiion

Policy Dev Eval 01

FY 17 HIV OA

NASTAD-TAVIE EvalProj

Bulding Futures Together

PHPS FY22

FY 17 HIV OA

PHPSFY21

Asststanca Programs tor Chronic Oisaasa Prevention and Control:

NHOHHS Chronic Conditions

NHOHHS SORH Chronic Conditions

Btock Grants lor Prevention and Traatrrtant of SubstarKe Abuse:

CS202519001

7549764

PRF61

B0AS-21-22-50R

N/A

RFR 500224

PRF61

AGREEMENT 04.6.21

Agreement07.10,21

Aoreement07.09.20

AgreementQ?. 10.21

39704

5C0224

O5-95-9(L0O2O1(MS27OOOO

Mtitiple-see notes

Agreement04.S.21

AgreementOH.27.21

CAPACfTYBL0500824M04

PRF61

N/A

T26HP394e2

Agreement07.l 0.21

PRF61

AgreemeniO7.00.20

Miidple- see notes

Agreefflent04.5.2l

93.758

93.758

93.788

93.788

93.788

93.810

93.610

93.834

93.834

93.870

93.889

93.889

93.889

93.698

93.898

93.896

93.698

93.898

93.917

93.917

93.928

93.932

93.940

93.940

93.940

93.945

93.945

46.036

41.678

87.714

383.247

43.285

(1.888)

404.664

35.587

6

35.593

62.688

3.681

66.549

46.926

949

4.159

24.545

29.653

32,677

5.680

33.638

21.648

2.909

96,752

270,158

1.359.370

1.629.528

30.419

25.475

18.044

15.256

69.047

122,347

25.419

6.775

31.194

376.087

376.087

24.985

11.660

11.660

Rl DepMtment of Behavioral Haatthcare. RIPRCII
OevetopRtent Disatiilitias and Hospitals

Saxualy Transmioad Diseases (STD) Prevention and Control Grants •

MA OepL of Pubic Health MDPHRateie

Preveniive Health errd Health San^s Btock Grant:

Missouri Opt of HBh 8 Sn BCSHFY21

NH OHHS Oral Haaltn Promo

3534294

PRF6t

CS202519001

05-95-90-90201CU5270000

93.959

93.977

93.991

93.991

310.616

13.551

15.469

656.250

671.739

585,377

585,377
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JSI RMsarch and Training kistitute, Inc.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOtTURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Yaar tndad SaplttniMr M, 2021

Fadral Orantorffaaa-throuoft Grantor/Proaram TItta

Matamal and ChU Heacn Servtoaa Stock Grant to iha Stataa:

RIOapLofHaaSn RIEPIFY21-26

NH DHHS PHPS FY21

UnivaraityotNH SKApl

AoanCY or Paaa-throuoh Numbar

7607811

Agraamef«O7.09.20

Subawvd L0032

Ftdaral

AaalaUnca

Uittrw *

03.994

93.994

93.994

Ftdaral

Expendtturaa

56.767

54.603

21.312

Total Subcontract

Enptntta

132.683

Total Pa<»-througti Grants- Dapanment of Haalib and Human Sarvicaa

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES • ToUl

0708.271

20.B28.778

1.525.098

2,3M.M1

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

TSCA TUa IV Stata Laad Grants CartAcatkyi ot Laad-Sasad Paint Profasslortals;

NHOHHS PHPSFY21

NH DHHS PHPS FY22

AgraamantQ7.09.20

AgraameniQ7.l0.2l

66.707

66.707

66.397

19.473

65.870

28.330

2.505

30.835

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY • ToUl 85.870

SNAP CLUSTER

Pass-throush Grant:

Community Food PrOfacts

Spmgflald Community

SNAP CLUSTER • Total

SCGHFP AgraameniO8/l0/20 10.225 20.180

20,180

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Diract Grant:

Boatirtg Safaty Fatarxial Astistanca:

U.S. Coast Guard
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY • Total

Ufa Jackal Study 3319FAN119207 97.012 278.316

278,311
16080

18,080

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Pass4hrough Grard:

Education Stabafcation Fund

National Community Haatth
Hampton Urdvaraity

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION- Total

NCHP Arizona

HMPTN UNIV - VA Workforca

Agraamani08.e.21 84.425

84.425

23.154

147.192

170,348

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE

Diract Grant:

Tha U.S. Prasidanfs Emargancy Ptan tor AIDS Raiiaf Programs •

U.S. Stata Dapartmant DREAMS OGAC

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF STATE • ToUl

S-LMAQM-16Ok-1103 19.029 (80.935)

(80,936)

(83.416)

(83,418)

U.$. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Pasa-tivough Grant:

Stata and Community Higbway Safaty-

Rl Dapartmant of

OITIca of Intamatlonal ScUnct artd Englnaaring- toUl

RIDOT-PREVCON 3695958 20.600 15,404

15,404

Total Expandlturts of Fadaral Awards $  119,830,250 23,221,830
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

September 30, 2021

NOTE 1 • BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. under programs of the federal govemment for the year
ended September 30, 2021. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements. Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc., it is not
intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of JSI Research
and Training Institute, Inc.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance,
wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

(2) Negative amounts shown on the Schedule represent adjustments or credits, which management
has determined are not material to the Schedule nor the program to which they relate, made in the
normal course of business to amounts reported as expenditures in prior years. Accordingly, such
adjustments are presented on a current basis.

(3) Federal Assistance Listing numbers and pass-through entity identifying numbers are presented
when available.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST RATE

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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Grant Thornton

eiUNT THORNTON LLP

75 Staip Street. 13** Floor

Boston, MA 02109

D ♦1 617 723 7900

F  ♦1 617 723 3640

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT

AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States {Government Auditing Standards), the consolidated financial statements of JSI
Research and Training Institute, Inc. and subsidiaries (the "Entity"), which comprise

the consolidated statement of financial position as of September 30, 2021, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated June 24, 2022.

Report on Internal control over financial reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we
considered the Entity's internal control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a
basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.
A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the
Entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a

timely basis. A significant deficiency Is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described In the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified.

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP Is the U.S. membar rnn of Grant Thornton Iniemaiional Ltd (GTIL). GT1L and aach of Its mambar rnns
ara saparata laQal arultias and ara not a workKvida partnarship,
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Grant Thornton

Report on compliance and other matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Entity's consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other

matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal

control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an

integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24, 2022
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@ Grant Thornton

OlIAMT THORNTON LLP

75 Suta Streat. 13" Floor

Bottorv MA 02109

O  4^1 617 723 7900

F  41 617 723 3640

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR

PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED

BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors

JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Report on compliance for each major federal program

Opinion on each major federal program
We have audited the compliance of JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and
subsidiaries (the 'Entity') with the types of compliance requirements identified as
subject to audit in the U.S. GfTice of Management and Budget's 0MB Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Entity's major
federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021. The Entity's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, the Entity complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material

effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended September 30, 2021.

Basis for opinion on each major federal program
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States*^ of America (US GAAS); the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States {Government Auditing Standards)', and
the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the
Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Entity and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Entity's compliance
with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Other matter - federal expenditures not included In the compliance audit
The Entity's consolidated financial statements include the operations World
Education, Inc. ("WEI"), which expended $29,799,901 in federal awards for the period
from July 1, 2020 to June 30, 2021, that is not included In the Entity's schedule of
expenditures of federal awards during the year ended September 30, 2021. Our
compliance audit, described in the Opinion on Each Major Federal Program section of

GT.COM Grant Thornton LLP is Iho U.S. membtr firm of Grant Thornton Inlamalional Ltd (GTIL). GT1L and aach of its m«mt>«r firms
are separate legal entities and are not a worldwide partnership.



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5B121F4D-B945-4D63-A47E-BD6D7474D828

@ Grant Thornton

our report, does not include the operations of WEI because WEI was subjected to a
separate audit of its compliance with the types of compliance requirements described
in the 0MB Compliance Supplement for the period from July 1, 2020 to June 30,
2021.

Responsibilities of management for compliance
Management Is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above

and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions
of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Entity's federal programs.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of compliance
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether

due to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Entity's compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute

assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with US GAAS, Govemment Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will

always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the

compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the

judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the Entity's
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS. Govemment Auditing Standards,

and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Entity's

compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing
such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control over compliance relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and

to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity's internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, and any slgni^cant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in intemal control over compliance that we
identified during the audit.
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Report on internal control over compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of
a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is

a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on
a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations,
during our audit we did not Identify any deficiencies in the Entity's internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.
However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in intemal control over

compliance may exist that have not been identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is

expressed.

The purpose of this Report on Internal Control Over Compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that
testing based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is
not suitable for any other purpose.

Boston, Massachusetts

June 24, 2022
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS:

Financial Statements

The type of report issued on whether the financial statements
audited were prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP

Internal control over financial reporting;

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiencyfies) identified?

•  Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?

Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

•  Material weaknesses identified?

•  Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings which are required to be reported under 2 CFR
section 200.51(a):

Identification of major programs:

Federal Assistance Listings Number

98.001

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B
programs:

Auditee qualified as low risk auditee?

Unmodified

No

None noted

No

No

None noted

Unmodified

No

Name of Federal Program

Foreign Assistance for Programs
Overseas

$3,000,000

No
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - CONTINUED

September 30, 2021

SECTION II - FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

None noted.

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None noted.
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JSI Research and Training Institute, Inc. and Affiliate

STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR'S FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

September 30, 2021

Finding
Number Finding Summary Status

2020-001 Certain Partnership for Supply Chain Management
accounts receivable and deferred revenue

amounts were improperly recorded in the fiscal year
2020 financial statements, prior to being identified and
adjusted as part of the audit process.

Management has
implemented processes and
controls such that this finding
did not reoccur In 2021.
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r« I

JSI

44 Famsworth St

Boston. MA. 02210
+1 617 482 0617

JSI RESEARCH & TRAINING INSTITUTE, INC.

RESOLUTION IN WRITING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sandro Galea, MD, MPH, DrPH

Board Chair

Dean and Robert A. Knox Professor

Topsy Kola-Oyeneyin,

Board Member

Partner at McKlnsey & Company

Alina Rocha Menocal

Board Member

Principal Research Fellow, Politics and Governance

Nneka Mobisson

Board Member

Co-founder and CEO of mymdoc and Faculty Advisor at IHI

Mike Useem, M.A., Ph.D.

Board Member

William and Jacalyn Egan Professor of Management

Abdourahmane Diallo, MD, MPH

Board Member

World Health Organization Representative, Kenya

Haflz Adamjee, M.S.

Board Member (ex officio WEI Board Chair)

Retired, former executive at Novartis

Margaret Grotty

Board Member (ex officio JSI CEO)

President/CEO
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Diane Lewis

Education

Keene State College, Keene, New Hampshire

Bachelor of Science, Occupational Safety, Minor in Management, CumLaude, 1996

Experience

JSI, Bow, New Hampshire
Consultant, January 2000 to present
Diane is highly experienced in working with community health centers, workforce assessments, survey research and methods, and
data analysis. She has been responsible for technical assistance, training, project direction, and data analysis and management in
many of JSI's largest information-oriented projects, including both technical and organizational aspects of the work. She is a
skilled user of analytic tools including spreadsheets, databases, statistical packages, and ArcGIS mapping software. She is also
trained in the development of federal shortage designations and survey research techniques, and provides guidance to government
agencies and health care organizations. Selected projects:

Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA), Bureau of Primary Health Care (BPHC), Uniform Data
System (UDS)
Project Director, Trainer, Reviewer, and Technical Assistance Visit Consultant for a major initiative to collect Uniform
Data System (UDS) information from all BPHC Section 330-funded awardees, look-alikes, and Bureau of Health
Workforce pro^^s across the country (over 1,500). Develop training and reference materials and train health centers
across the U.S. on the reporting requirements, use of tools, and resources available. Review of over 50 health center
reports from various states/territories (Arizona, New Hampshire, Texas and Puerto Rico). Provide technical assistance
with data reporting, virtually and in-person. Oversee ongoing operational aspects of the UDS collection cycle. Monitor
progress of key deliverables as well as coordination with contractors and BPHC staff around structural and contextual
tasks relating to the UDS. Develop extensive analysis and comprehensive reports that provide feedback, trends, and
reference for BPHC staff on data submitted, reporting instruction, and regarding emerging and evolving data needs.
Successful completion of federal background investigation and security clearance, as required under contract.

Hawaii State Department of Health, Office of Primary Care and Rural Health, Workforce/Provider Trainings
Project Director and Trainer for a series of three contracts aimed to train and provide technical assistance to HI DOH
staff on the processes involved in acquiring and analyzing claims, provider, and demographic data, training on the rules,
data evaluation, and preparing federal shortage designation applications, and how to assess service areas for statewide
capacity and area planning.

Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health Primary Care Office (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity
Project Director and Analyst for the state of Maine's workforce shortage process. Provide ongoing support and training
to the agency on the shortage designation process and online SDMS application system. Procure, clean, link, and analyze
data relevant to assess workforce capacity, including visit claims, provider licensure and survey data, population
demographics, tourism, and health disparity data. Analyzed data using linked GIS, Microsoft Access, and Excel
databases to assess areas of workforce shortages and statewide service areas. Field and analyze statewide provider
capacity surveys using Alchemer (physicians, psychiatrists, and dentists). Assess service areas for statewide capacity and
area planning.

Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Primary Care Ofrice (PCO), Workforce/Provider Capacity
Project Director and Analyst for the HPSA designation process for the state of Massachusetts. Evaluate and develop
service areas using American Community Survey (ACS) population data, provider licensure lists, and Medicaid claims
data. Conduct local capacity assessments and use of SDMS for federal designation applications. Provide training and
support to agency staff on the designation process. Perform feasibility analysis to identify new dental, mental health, and
primary care HPSA and MUA/P potential. Provide data in support of needs assessment activities.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health and Primary Care Section (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity
Project Director and Analyst for the healthcare woikforce shortage designation process developed to support
communities with the greatest unmet health care needs, disparities, health workforce shortages, and other health care
access barriers in New Hampshire. Identify areas meeting the federal criteria for health professional shortage area

D. Lewis 1
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(HPSA) and medically underserved area/population (MUA/P). Assess service areas statewide using geographic
information systems (CIS) mapping, patient origin, U.S. Census, providers, claims, and other integrated data sources.
Develop shortage designation applications using federal requirements, assess provider capacity by connecting with area
experts and surveying providers, and utilize the online federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) for all
aspects of designations. Develop and validate the health care workforce statewide using online survey tool, Qualtrics.
Evaluate provider capacity statewide of physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, substance use disorder
experts, mental health providers, and dentists.

Rhode Island Department of Health, Office of Primary Care and Rural Health, Workforce/Provider Capacity
Project Director and Analyst for the HPSA analysis and designation project for the state of Rhode Island. Process and
submit shortage designation applications, including development of service areas through the SDMS that meet the
Bureau of Health Workforce requirements for designations. Provide ongoing support and training to the agency on the
shortage designation process. Assess service areas for statewide capacity and area planning.

Wyoming Department of Health, Public Health Division (PCO), Workforce/Provider Capacity
Project Director and Analyst for the HPSA analysis and designation project for the state of Wyoming. Process and
submit new and renewal shortage designation applications, including development of service areas through the SDMS
that meet the Bureau of Health Workforce requirements for designations. Develop and analyze results of web-based
statewide surveys using Alchemer of physicians, mental health providers, and dental providers. Develop standard
operating procedures and trainings for project staff regarding designations and provider management.

HRSA, BPHC, Health Center Workforce Survey

Health Center Workforce Liaison Lead for a workforce well-being and satisfaction survey administered to all staff
working at health centers funded by the BPHC. Recruited, trained, and led a team of 50 expert liaisons responsible for
collaborating with health center leadership, providing strategies and encouragement for staff participation.

HRSA, National Center for Health Workforce Analysis

Data Analyst for an initiative to estimate the impact of the expansion of health insurance coverage on primary care
practitioner shortages through 2020. Assessed provider capacity, including management and integration of the workforce
licensure and national physician identifier databases (Physicians, PA, NP, and CNMs), reviewed the Clinician Supply
Model (CSM) to obtain and apply baseline and growth projections, and applied discount factors based on validated local
supply data. Analysis supported development of primary care provider supply modeling and local supply estimates.

HRSA, Bureau of Health Professions, Shortage Designation Branch
Data Analyst for a major initiative to revise and consolidate the rules by which federal shortage area designations are
evaluated (including Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPS As), Medically Underserved Areas (MU As), and
Medically Underserved Populations (MUPs)). Conduct extensive analysis of U.S. census and provider level data, both in
support of factors considered for inclusion in the rules, and for evaluating their likely impact on the national safety net.
Reviewed, documented, and determined provider capacity, based on national licensure lists and a national provider
identifier (NPI) downloadable file, used for review of provider-to-population ratios. This analysis used comprehensive
database and CIS mapping tools to evaluate shortage areas, target populations, and provider capacity nationally.

HRSA, Division of Services for Children with Special Health Needs
Data Analyst for an effort to review performance measures against the experience and capabilities of grantees and that
proposed a set of performance measures for the Division. Reviewed measures that reflect grantee capabilities, aligning
with measures from existing initiatives to minimize burden. Identified measures of sufficient breadth and depth to enable
the Division to evaluate success in achieving program goals (e.g., indicators of a comprehensive statewide system of
services for Children and Youth with Special Health Care Needs (CYSHCN)). Created a series of data collection forms
for proposed measures that provide an annual state level status on activities performed to strengthen the system of
services for CYSHCN. Interviewed grantees on the feasibility of collecting and reporting of the proposed measures.
Reported the measures, recommendations, and the current data and evaluation capabilities of the grantees to the division.

HRSA, Healthcare Quality Council (HcQC)
Site Coordinator for a study to test the feasibility of implementing HRSA's Core Clinical Measures. Assisted in selection
and recruitment of grantees, with the development of the feasibility study design and orientation/training materials.
Provided technical assistance to grantees in the feasibility study. Analyzed data and provided results of grantees studied.

Maine Quality Counts
Provider Data Analyst for an initiative to improve population health outcomes for patients with hypertension and
diabetes. As a data analyst, supported the implementation of quality improvement (Ql) processes by gathering data,
processing and developing a database used by Maine (Quality Counts staff for continued inventory and ongoing
maintenance of the of primary care practices available throughout Maine. The database was created to reflect the
practices readiness and current participation in various Ql initiatives.

D. Lewis 2
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Computer Skills

Proficient in Microsoft Office, ArcGIS Desktop, and online survey instruments (Alchemer, SurveyMonkey, Qualtrics)

Training | Presentation Skills

♦ Bureau of Primary Health Care (BPHC) Uniform Data System (UDS) trainings; throughout the United States, including
U.S. territories, annually

♦ Best Practices: Methods for Provider Data Collection; Primary Care Office Annual Meeting with Bureau of Health
Workforce; Rockville, Maryland, August 3, 2016

♦ Analyzing your Service Area Using CIS: UDS Grantee Service Area Data; National Harbor, Maryland. June 23, 2008
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Eric Turer

Education

UNION College, Schenectady, New York
Health Care Administration, 1989

B.S., Biology, 1989 (Five-year combined degree)

Experience

JSI/Commuaity Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant, June 1994 to present
Mr. Turer is an experienced project director, a skilled analyst, and an expert in issues pertaining to access to care for underserved
populations, including rural health care delivery systems, community health centers, integrated delivery systems, and provider
workforce adequacy. He has worked at all levels of the medical care system, with a particular focus on safety net providers and
primary care access. His clients range from the key federal and state agencies responsible for medical access nationally, to individual
providers and community organizations in underserved areas throughout the country. His projects cover a wide variety of services
including policy development and impact analysis, community-based planning, health care needs assessment, program evaluation,
operational improvement, and health services research. He possesses a strong mix of quantitative skills, including database analysis
and design, statistical analysis, data visualization, CIS (mapping), survey research, and pro-forma modeling, complimented by
extensive experience using qualitative data collection methods. A sample of his key projects includes:

NH Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Rural Health & Primary Care; Concord, NH
(1999 to present- various contracts)

Technical Advisor for a long running series of contracts to support functions of the NH Primary Care Office providing
technical assistance on a wide variety of shortage designation and workforce analysis and data management needs. His
team is responsible for evaluating and processing all New Hampshire applications for federal provider shortage
designations, which includes gathering and analyzing all provider data in the state. Mr. Turer worked to implement the
first statewide survey of physicians, which has since grown to support the development and analysis of ongoing
electronic provider licensing surveys for a wide range of provider disciplines. Mr. Turer's efforts also include directing
the analysis of the state's All Payer claims data base (CHIS) for capacity analysis. This has several components,
including assessing provider service and Medicaid capacity for primary care, mental health and dental providers, as
well as integrating all sources of provider data into the federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS).
The data is also used to produce a unique set of Origin-Destination maps and data, showing where residents of each zip
code travel for different types of primary care, the average drive time to care, the fractional drive times of visits that
exceed the federal standard goal, and the utilization rates of covered populations. This data has now been integrated
into a CIS based project that incorporates a range of other data sets and is being used to plan the new Statewide
Rational Service Areas (SRSAs) in collaboration with PCO staff. The system allows scenario testing and provides pre-
calculated designation results for proposed areas and saving the defined boundaries. Finally, Mr. Turer also served the
lead analyst and author of the NH Rural Health Analysis; a comprehensive study of available state data designed to
highlight and quantify rural health disparities in the state. He recently revised and converted into a series of Tableau
dashboards.

Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Augusta ME
(November 2017 — present)
Technical Advisor for a statewide primary care workforce data management and analysis, including all shortage
designation related functions and a broader assessment of access. JSI developed a GIS-linked tool to analyze primary
care workforce and access for communities across the state of Maine across the medical, dental, and mental health
disciplines. In addition to processing HPSA designations, the underlying data is also used to conduct more detailed
and in-depth analysis combining demographic and health data on the population, combined with provider licensure and
survey data, and an analysis of claims from the state's All Payer claims database. The claims analysis has allowed JSI to
directly map the patient flow and travel times at the zip code level, for populations of different life cycles and insurance
coverage at the zip code level, using an Origin-Destination analysis process and assessment of utilization rates. This
method was presented to PCO's nationally as an approach to developing statewide rational service for shortage
designation, and is not being used to develop the state's SRSA plan using a newly created CIS tool to integrate the
data, examine the results of different definition options, and record the area boundaries for submission.
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MA Department of Public Health; Primary Care OfTice; Boston, MA
(2012 to present - various contracts)
Technical Advisor for a statewide effort to support the MA Primary Care Office in evaluating, obtaining, and
maintaining primary care access designations (HPSA & MUA/P). In addition to gathering and organizing provider
iicensure data, Mr. Turer worked directly with the state Medicaid office to obtain primary care, dental, and psychiatry
claims, and integrated the results with the CMS National Provider Identifier (NPl) file to upload capacity into SDMS
and to create a GlS-based project to rapidly assess designation potential. This data was also used to create Origin-
Destination analyses of Medicaid access and is being used to assess designation configurations. Mr. Turer is working
to obtain the state APCD data to be used in developing the SRSA plan.

Rhode Island Department of Public Health; Primary Care O^ice; Providence, R!
(July 2015 to Sept 2018 ~ various contracts)
Technical Advisor for a needs assessment and capacity development project to assist the state Primary Care Office to
effectively conduct shortage and underservice designations. JSI conducted a comprehensive needs and resource
assessment of the various areas of the RI Department of Health with relevance to the designation process. The project
then involved developing and implementing a plan to integrate the various state data resources available, including
licensing lists, Medicaid claims data, and the results of a series of statewide provider surveys. Another goal of the
project was to develop staff skills to optimize the state's ability to obtain and renew designations and identify gaps in
access. This included informing DOH staff of the processes used to conduct the analyses as they were ongoing, and
also an on-site training on the designation process and data management protocols used. JSI has now obtained the state
All Payer Claims Database and will be developing the base for the SRSA development process to be undertaken.

Wyoming Department of Health, Primary Care Ofiice and Office of Rural Health, Cheyenne WY
(June 2016 - present)
Technical Advisor for a comprehensive contract supporting the WY Primary Care Office in developing data and
systems assess and enhance access to care in the state, and to develop and maintain federal shortage designations,
including Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSAs) and Medically Underserved Areas/Populations (MUA/Ps). The
covers the three primary care disciplines of Medical, Dental, and Mental/Behavioral health care. The project involves
analysis and integration of provider workforce data, Medicaid claims data, and underlying demographics of the
population. As part of this work, JSI has surveyed all Mental/Behavioral Health providers in the state and quantified
their current capacity, the nature/setting of their practice, and acceptance of Medicaid and Sliding Fee payment. JSI has
also used the Medicaid claims data to conduct Origin-Destination analyses of mental health visits from each zip code to
determine the average drive time to services and the patterns of where care is received. The data is integrated into a
comprehensive GIS mapping project that brings the various data sources together and permits rapid analysis of the
designation potential of areas of the state, as well as showing the care seeking patterns gleaned from claims. JSI is
currently applying for access to similar Medicare data to use for comparison to the Medicaid claims patterns.

Bureau of Health Workforce (BHW); Washington, D.C.
(Oct. 2008 to March 2015. various contracts)

Project Director and Lead Analyst for a key HRSA regulator)' initiative to revise the rules by which federal provider
shortage and medical underservice designations are evaluated (including HPSAs, MUAs, &MUPs). In the decades
since they were created, these designations have become the foundation upon which nearly every component of the
federal health care safety net system now rests to some degree. Under a series of separately awarded contracts, Mr.
Turer and his team worked closely with a mandated 'Negotiated Rulemaking Committee" of national stakeholders,
and with the leaders of HRSA and its key Bureaus, to explore a wide range of policy options and to produce detailed
impact models of different proposed approaches to revised designation methods. Mr. Turer had the lead role in
working with the committee, presenting summaries to frame the issues under consideration, and leading the extensive
analysis in support of the factors being considered for inclusion and approaches to scoring and combining them,
setting thresholds, and ultimately for evaluating the likely impact of the changes adopted on the nation overall, and on
the existing safety net infrastructure. The project also involved development of regulatory language and plans to assist
states with the roll-out when new rules are published. This involved analyzing and integrating a wide variety of
workforce, demographic, health, and capacity data into a flexible GlS-liiiked platform capable of rapidly responding to
changing requests. As low income access is a key component, JSI also worked with CMS to define and obtain claims-
based data by provider, and used this to estimate access and provider capacity for this population. The models
developed showed the detailed impact on communities, providers, and current resource recipients nationally and at the
local level. Outputs included custom impact analysis reports and a web-based interactive CIS mapping interface to
explore results. Under Mr. Turer's direction, JSI subsequently worked to support internal governmental review of the
updated regulations, and to develop plans for the roll out of the new rules with Primary Care Offices and other
stakeholders in anticipation of when the rule is published and implemented nationally.
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Bureau of Health Workforce (BHW); Washington, D.C.
(Sept. 2020 to present)
Project Director and Lead Analyst for a policy analysis project intended to explore the impact of alternative methods for
prioritizing need and ranking applicants for the Nurse Corps Loan Repayment Program (NCLRP), which incentivizes
nurses and advance-practice nurses to serve.in designated Health Professional Shortage Areas in return for payments
equated to the providers' outstanding clinical education loans. The program is unique in that it looks not only at the
level of need among communities, but also at the fmancial need of the applicants, as part of the scoring process. The
project involved a series of analyses to model the impact of alternative need prioritization approaches on 4 years of past
applicant data within the funding limits of the program's components in those years. The analyses demonstrated that
altemative approaches to scoring applicants could improve a range of parameters for program performance, including the
volume of providers given awards (and therefore communities accommodated), the geographic distribution and portion
of rural placements, changes to the balance of facility types for placements, the balance between different disciplines
within placement categories, and the level of need in the placement communities as measured by the HPSA score.

NH Center For Excellence - Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services; Concord, N.H.
(Sept. 2018 to present)

The NH Center for Excellence provides technical assistance, disseminates data and information, and promotes
knowledge transfer to support the effectiveness of communities, practitioners, policymakers, and other stakeholders
working to reduce alcohol and other drug misuse and related consequences in New Hampshire. Mr. Turer joined the
team to provide assistance with data and fmancial analysis when the state formally incorporated a cost effectiveness
component in the scope of the project when it was renewed. Mr. Turer has the lead role of extracting and analyzing the
WITS data, describing all admissions, discharges, and services related to episodes of treatment in the state and
developing metrics of benefit to be used in the analysis.

District of Columbia Department of Health, Washington DC
(June 2016 to August 2017, Follow-on contract to present)

Lead analyst for a broad reaching project to develop both a Health Systems Plan (HSP) and a Primary Care Needs
Assessment (PCNA) for the District of Columbia. The HSP serves as a guide for the development of a comprehensive,
accessible, and equitable health care system that provides high quality, cost effective care for DC residents and supports
the administration of regulations regarding the provision of uncompensated care to underserved populations. The PCNA
is an in-depth analysis of primar>' care access, adequacy, and distribution within the District, aimed at exploring and
addressing persistent disparities in health care outcomes for residents of different parts of the city and the underlying
social determinants that correlate with them. The assessment involved collecting and analyzing both quantitative and
qualitative data to conduct an assessment of communit)' need, health status, barriers to care, perceived services gaps, and
service utilization. The quantitative analytic components involved integrating a wide range of data sources into a
comprehensive, CIS linked analytic firework. This included analysis of hospital and ED discharge data sets,
Medicaid claims data, provider licensure files, and a wide range of data sets describing health status, risk factors, and
underlying socioeconomic and demographic information. Under a follow on contract, JSI further explored the large
portion of the Medicaid population that did not appear to be connecting with the primary care system using more
detailed claims information, to determine who they are and what other services they may be utilizing.

Bureau of Primary Health Care / Association of Clinicians for the Underserved; Washington DC
(July 2014 to present)

JSI is working with the Association of Clinicians for the Underserved (ACU) to implement and manage a national
cooperative agreement from HRSA to develop a primary care provider recruitment and retention training and technical
assistance center, known as STAR^ fwww.chcworkforce.org1. for providers in underserved communities, with a
particular focus on community health centers. JSI was responsible for creating health center and community profiles;
developing a workforce self-assessment tool; customizing and implementing TA tracking database, revising or
developing recruitment & retention toolkits, and conducting trainings. Mr. Turer serves several roles in the project. He
had primary responsibility for developing the health center / community profiles, which combine data from a wide
variety of sources to create a customized assessment of potential recruitment & retention related issues for each of
over 1,400 health centers nationally, based on evaluation of dozens of parameters about each organization and the
areas it serves. This data was also summarized to develop state-level recruitment and retention profiles, and a national
analysis of the issues identified among sub-sets of health centers to establish a baseline and monitoring data system for
the many parameters that impact workforce. In 2019, Mr. Turer converted these static profile reports into dynamic
Tableau dashboards to expand the flexibility and utility of the results to the health centers and PCAs. He was also part
of the team that developed the tracking system for technical assistance requests coming into the center contributes to
the content of materials developed for the TAG.

Bureau of Primary Health Care; Washington, D.C.
(2000 to present - various contracts)

Project Director for the nationwide collection 'Uniform Data System' (UDS) data from all BPHC affiliated grantees
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across the country from 2000-2004; Senior UDS Analyst from 2004 to present. Directed the transition of the UDS to a
software based system. Integrally involved in the design of systems for collection, processing, editing, and reporting of
the UDS data, as well as the design of the nationwide UDS training program. Mr. Tureralso developed the UDS
Comparison Report which used the data collected to provide benchmarking and performance improvement statistics
back to the reporting centers. Mr. Turer was responsible for the development of the FQHC Service Area/Overlap (SAO)
Analysis, including developing grantee reporting specifications, designing the data analysis, and development of a CIS
driven mapping tool to allow BPHC staff to analyze the impact of the program nationwide, as well as to study unmet
need and.the impact of BPHC resources at a detailed geographic level. These results have been made available publicly
through the webnbased UDS Mapper, and JS! is frequently asked to run analyses in support grant reviews and resource
allocation decisions by BPHC senior staff. He designed and implemented the update of the Service Area Analysis to
include a breakdown by insurmce, in order to permit analysis of the impact of the Affordable Care Act on health center
utilization and access nationally, and within each health center's local service area. Mr. Turer is also responsible for
similar analytic work for the UDS reported by the FQHC Look-Alike program and, in the past, for the Urban Indian
Health program and the National Health Service Corps when those programs collected similar data.

Bureau of Health Professions / National Center for Health Workforce Analysts; Washington, D.C.
(Sepi. 2012 to August 2013)
Project Director for a HRSA initiative to develop a detailed nationwide community-level estimate of the impact of the
expansion of health insurance coverage under the Affordable Care Act, in terms of increased demand for primary care
services and provider woricforce adequacy. The project produced detailed geographic and demographic estimates of
the increase in primary care demand resulting from ACA related coverage gains, compared to "baseline' community
level demand in the absence of the ACA in the years from 2014 to 2020. Baseline and incremental ACA related
demand were then compared to the existing and projected supply of primary care providers to examine potential
provider surpluses/deficits and the relationship of these to the ACA insurance expansion. These estimates were made
nationally within key areas of interest to the agency, such as existing HPSA and MUA/MUP designation areas. Health
Center service areas, and a nationwide definition of Primary Care Service Areas (PCSAs) covering all communities.
The project was a partnership between JSI and the Urban Institute in which they modeled the population transitioning
from uninsurance to various forms of coverage in each year following ACA implementation based on an updated
version of their highly regarded Health Insurance Policy Simulation Model (HIPSM). JSI then developed and applied
estimates of the resulting changes in demand for primary care services, based on analysis of the Medical Expenditure
Panel Survey, and applied small area estimation methods to examine discrete service areas nationally. The results of
the project were summarized in an extensive report which highlights the overall impact of the ACA on primary care
supply and demand, and also documented the differential impact that expanded coverage will have in areas already
designated has having provider shortages or issues of medical underservice.

Center for Health Workforce Studies, Albany, NY
(May 2017-August 2017)

Conducted a series of recorded national webinars on topics related to primary care provider data management and the
use of Medicaid and All Payer claims in assessing capacity and identifying shortage areas. The webinars were
conducted live and also recorded and posted as resources on the Center's Technical Assistance site. Titles included,
AN INTRODUCTION TO ACCESSING, UNDERSTANDING, AND USING MEDICAID DATA FOR HPSA
ANALYSIS, USING MEDICAID CLAIMS DATA TO CALCULATE CAPACITY FOR FEDERALLY
DESIGNATED SHORTAGE AREAS: PARTS 1&2, and PREPARING AN SDMS STATEWIDE PROVIDER
DATA UPLOAD: 2 COMPREHENSIVE APPROACHES. See

http://www.healthworkforceta.org/resources/webinars/

Nevada State Primary Care Office, Carson City NV
(July 2016 - September 2016)
The development of a revised Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) by the Bureau of Health Woricforce
placed a considerable degree of new technical requirements on state primary care offices to manage and inte^te
health workforce data from a variety of disparate sources. Nevada, on behalf of all PCO's in HRSA Regions IX and
X, contracted with Mr. Turer to develop and conduct a multi-day training and hands-on workshop for PCO staff from
the included states, to discuss the potential utility of various sources of provider data and how they can be leveraged
for the purposes of shortage designation and primary care access analysis more broadly. The in-person training was
followed by a hands-on workshop showing how to associate and process provider data using various techniques, and
then how to analyze it and produce files that can be uploaded into the SDMS system to meet the new requirements.

New England Rural Health Roundtable; Starksboro, VT
(March 2014 to Oct. 2015) (prior version 2006-2007)
Project Director for a wide-ranging analysis of health and health related data for the 6-state New England region to
identify and quantify disparities between rural and metro areas of the region, and also to examine differences between
communities with differing levels of remoteness within the rural areas. A wide range of over 260 socio-economic,
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demographic, and health status, outcomes, and behavioral health measures were collected for the region. The data
elements were aggregated according to a uniquely developed RUCA-based rural definition tailored to reflect the rural
nature of New England, and established in collaboration with the directors of each state's Office of Rural Health. This
project is partially an update and enhancement to a similar report produced by JSI for the NERHRT in 2007. As such,
the results also include trends from the prior report, and comparisons to national data were also added. The results
were formatted for print publication and presented at the fall Symposium in October 2014 and have been used as the
basis of policy, advocacy, and planning efforts.

Bureau of Primary Health Care; Washington, D.C.;
(Sept. 2019 to present)
Staff burnout has been identified as a major issue for the Health Center program by the BPHC, even before the COVID
pandemic. JSI was contracted to develop a job satisfaction/well-being survey, and design survey implementation
methods, for a survey to be administered to all employees at all federally funded health centers nationwide. The survey
development was an 18 month effort which included convening a technical advisory panel of national experts,
conducting an extensive literature review, evaluating previous national survey instruments and benchmark data, and
conducting listening sessions with different occupational groups at health centers. Mr. Turer played several key roles in
the first phase, including creating a taxonomy of health centers to assure representation throu^out the process,
conducting components of the literature review, serving as a key member of the core team drafting the survey,
developing the implementation strategy, and assuring a representative response. JSI has since been awarded the contract
to implement and analyze the survey nationwide, anticipated to include reaching nearly 400,000 individuals employed at
ail levels in the nation's 1400 health centers. Mr. Turer is the Data Team Lead for the collection effort, responsible for
developing all aspects of the data collection systems, response tracking, and data products including feedback to each
health center while assuring respondent privacy. Because there is no listing of health center staff and contact
information, Mr. Turer has also developed a secure system for obtaining email contacts from all health centers while
assuring the confidentiality of staff participating.

Department of Public Health and Environment, Primar}' Care Office, Denver CO
(March 2018 - June 2018)

The Colorado Primary Care Office undertook a process of developing a unique provider data management system
designed to integrate a wide variety of data sources to create a more robust and reliable basis for analyzing provider
availability in the state. In order to use this new data resource to better assess population level access to care, JSI was
contracted to assist the PCO in developing methods leading to the ultimate goal of a more meaningful and
comprehensive in-state designation methodology, to be used in allocating significant new resources available to address
disparities. JSI provided guidance on several key functions. JSI outlined a plan to utilize our unique Origin-Destination
analysis of the state's all payer claims database to examine detailed patterns of access for office visits and other primary
care related services. Although the actual data release was delayed, the intent is for these patterns to form the basis of
examining 'natural' service areas, highlighting disparities in access by insurance coverage, calculating average drive
time to access care from each community, calculating the fraction of visits exceeding desired thresholds, and examining
the impact of access on utilization of primary and preventive services. In parallel, JSI did demonstrate the methods for
applying more technologically sophisticated means of relating provider resources to population, comparing these to the
traditional PopulationiProvider.ratio. Using methods such as the two-step floating catchment area and rasterized
distance decay models, we demonstrated how these CIS based processes can better reflect the access patterns of
residents. These two methods can ultimately be contrasted to see where access is being driven by forces other than
minimum distance and insurance. Finally, we calculated average and ideal need/demand for primary care services and
compared this to the calculated provider/service availability to identify gaps in need of resources.

Selected Boards | Affiliations

New England Rural Health Roundtable (6-state regional rural health association)
Board President (November 2017 - May 2020)
Board Member 2000 to present
Policy Committee (Former Chair, current member), Finance Committee, External Collaboration Committee
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ALYSSA CARLISLE

JSl Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute

Education

University OF NEW Hampshire

Bachelors of Arts, Psychology, 2016

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., d/b/a Community Health Institute, Bow, New Hampshire
Specialist, August 2018 to present
JSI provides consultation to health care organizations in the areas of quality and performance measurement, health services
delivery, public health, strategic planning, and program evaluation. Clients include government agencies, public and private
health care providers. Since 1978, JSI has provided consulting, research, and training services for agencies and organizations
seeking to improve the health of individuals, communities, and nations..

Current projects:
Wyoming Department of Health, Public Health Division, Office of Rural Health (ORH)
Provides project management for the Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) Analysis and Designation project for
the state of Wyoming. Creates new and updates existing shortage designation applications. Conducts collection and
analysis of statewide primary care, mental health, and dental health survey data and completes data updates in the BMW
Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS). Works with providers and members of the local service area to
obtain and validate information for designations.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health and Primary Care Section (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity
Provides project management for the healthcare workforce shortage designation process in New Hampshire. Identifies
and reviews areas meeting the federal criteria for HPSAs and MUA/Ps. Develops shortage designation applications using
federal requirements, assesses provider capacit>' by connecting with area experts and analyzing provider survey data, and
utilizes the BHW Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) for all aspects of designations.

Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health Primary Care OfTice (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity
Provides project management for the state of Maine's workforce shortage process. Provides ongoing support and training
to the agency on the shortage designation process and BHW Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS).
Procures, cleans, links, and analyzes data relevant to assess workforce capacity. Conducts and analyzes statewide
provider capacity surveys.

Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Primary' Care Office (PCO), Workforce/Provider Capacity
Provides project management for the HPSA designation process for the state of Massachusetts. Evaluates and develops
service areas, conducts local capacity assessments, and uses the SDMS system for federal designation applications.
Performs feasibility analysis to identify new dental, mental health, and primary care HPSA and MUA/P potential.

HRSA Health Information Technology, Evaluation, and Quality (HITEQ) Center
Provides support to the HITEQ Center to support federally qualified health centers (FQHCs) and health center partners
(PCAs, HCCNs) to use electronic health records (EHRs) and other health IT to collect accurate clinical data and leverage
data to support positive health outcomes for all patients. Manages all HITEQ consultant and subcontractor contracts.

HRSA Telebealth Technology-Enabled Learning Program (TTELP): Treating Addiction in Rural Areas ECHO
Member of the Operations Team developing, implementing, and evaluating a 5-year ECHO® designed to strengthen the
rural Northern New England behavioral health care workforce by increasing participant knowledge and application of
The American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) Criteria to address current and emerging patient needs, improve
quality of SUD care, and achieve health equity for rural residents. Responsibilities include contributing to materials
development, providing technical assistance to participants developing case presentations, evaluation, and leading the
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Advisory/Quality Improvement Group of expert advisors and participants to ensure fidelity to the ECHO® model,
quality of implementation and curriculum development, and advisement to inform adaptations for future sessions.

New Hampshire Children's Resiliency Retreat (CRR) Program
Provides data collection and evaluation services to the Children's Resiliency Retreat (CRR) program to guide their
efforts to.become classified as an effective evidence-based program by the NH Service to Science Panel. JSI is using a
participatory process to revise the Program's logic model, identify evaluation goals and objectives, and revise and
develop data collection tools to effectively measure program outcomes.

Pasl projects:
U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Bureau of
Primary Health Care (BPHC) Uniform Data System
Assisted with the implementation of the Uniform Data System (UDS) that collects information annually from over 1,500
federally qualified health centers (FQHCs) nationwide. Provided support to health centers completing the UDS by
providing direct technical assistance and creating technical assistance resources. Provided support in the UDS annual
report review process and data analysis and reporting projects.

New Hampshire Home Visiting Program Supports and Services
Provided support to the NH Home Visiting Program and its sub-recipient agencies implementing the Healthy Families
America (HFA) model, funded by the federal Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program
(MIECHV). Assisted with the facilitation of statewide training events for home visitors including, conducting an annual
needs assessment, identifying subject-matter expert trainers, and engaging in continuous dialogue with agencies to most
effectively provide training and technical assistance resources. Also, assisted with the implementation of continuous
quality improvement (CQI) for NH Home Visiting Program agencies.

New Hampshire Acts Early Needs Assessment
Analyzed qualitative survey data submitted by developmental screening partners and stakeholders, as it related to
challenges families faced in accessing developmental screening during COVlD-19. Supplemented qualitative data with
data pulled via a systemic review of other recently completed needs assessments and strategic plans to support families
with children under the age of five.

NH Council for Youth with Chronic Conditions (CYCC) Needs Assessment
Provided data collection and analysis services to the NH CYCC's needs assessment project to assess the successes and
challenges youth with chronic physical health conditions and their families face in everyday life. Completed secondary
data review, developed and administered a statewide survey for caregivers and young adults, and conducted focus
groups. Completed analysis of survey data, qualitative data analysis of interviews, and compiled a report of the results.

AHRQ ECHO National Nursing Home COVID-19 Action Network
Cohort Coordinator for the 2021 ECHO Nursing Home COVID-19 Action Network. Provided technical assistance to
nursing homes in ME and NH participating in the action network and assisted in the facilitation of ECHO sessions.

PRIOR EXPERIENCE

Dartmouth-Hitchcock Medical Center, Lebanon, NH

Research Assistant-Psychiatry Department, 20I6-20I8
Assisted with the management and organization of a research study testing a smartphone application (app), designed to help
individuals with severe mental illness in the workplace. Completed usability testing of smartphone app and maintained app
specification document. Assisted with IRB submissions and aimual reviews, organized and conducted group and individual
orientations to the study, provided technical assistance to study participants, and carried out interviews with study participants and
agency staff at community sites. Performed quantitative and qualitative data analysis of survey and interview data using SPSS and
Dedoose software. Assisted with the writing and editing of research papers.

Computer Skills

Proficient in:

Microsoft Office Suite ^
Online Tools: Google Drive, Qualtrics, Alchemer, SurveyMonkey, Mailchimp
Data Analysis Software: SPSS, Dedoose
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Steve Schaffer

Education

University of MARY WASHINGTON, FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

MS Geospatial Analysts, 2019

University of Florida, Gainesville, Florida
MA Geography (All but Thesis) .

UNIVERSITY OF MARY WASHINGTON, FREDERICKSBURG, VIRGINIA

BA. Political Science, 1996

Experience

JSI, Boston, Massachusetts
Lead GIS Analyst, 2010 - present
Lead Geographic Information Systems (GIS) Analyst for JSI. Areas of expertise include: geospatial analysis, cartographic
representation, database and statistical analysis and online web mapping applications.

Selectedprojects:

Geographic Accessibility Analysis using Claims/patient Origin Data
Examined travel patterns and geographic accessibility using all payer claims (APCD) and Medicaid databases for projects in NH,
MA, WY, ME, FL and MD. This process involves developing network based origin/destination drive-time matrices, creating
natural or claims-based, service areas and assessing the population demand for services against provider supply. Utilized claims
data to provide updated provider capacity by geocode location for uploading to the Health Resources and Services Administration
(HRSA) Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) database platform. Created measures of geographic accessibility,
visualized through maps, that assist in the identification of underserved or shortage areas for potential designation.

GIS Analysis for Healthcare Workforce Shortage Designation
Analyst for the workforce shortage process in the states of New Hampshire, Maine, Massachusetts, and Wyoming. Provided
socioeconomic and demographic data, spatial analysis and map visualization to identify areas meeting the federal criteria for
health professional shortage area (HPSA) and medically underserved area/population (MUA/P). Analyzed and mapped
workforce capacity and insurance claim data. Created a GIS-based tool for the delineation of state-based rational service areas
(SRSA). The tool allows for the iterative testing of proposed service areas and produces outputs for the tested area including;
population, low-income percentage, population-to-provider ratio, low-income population-to-provider ratio and mean travel time
for patient trips.

Strengthening Systems of Care for People with HIV & Optoid Use
Spatial analysis and mapping of HIV incidence and prevalence in combination with service locations and relevant opioid use data
and treatment locations for this project with HRSA's HIV/AIDS Bureau. Mapping for landscape analysis reports for 9 project
states included HIV prevalence at the county level in relation to Ryan White service locations and substance use treatment
locations in relation to rate of drug overdose deaths. An additional custom drive time network was performed and an intersect
map created to visualize the combined geographic accessibility across HIV service and substance use treatment service locations.

Community Health Needs Assessments
Conducted mapping and geo-spatial analysis in support of health center needs analysis for state and regional health systems and
individual clinics and hospitals. Including mapping of income, race/ethnicity, age, gender and social determinate demographics;
mapping of health status, vital statistics and preventable indicators; geo-location of service sites and patient based and drive-time
accessibility based service area analysis. Analysis conducted includes spatio-temporal pattern change in patient and population
data, global and local spatial autocorrelation and hotspot analysis, spatial regression and vector and raster spatial overlay
techniques.

a

S. Schaffer 1
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HPSA/MUA/P Shortage Designation
CIS lead for mapping and analysis for the project included: Gathering Census demographic and health access related data at
multiple geographic levels and mapping the results, conducting a small area analysis to provide model testing inputs at any
geographic area, building impact testing models, linked in CIS to maps, that provided detailed indicators on the impact of
designation method changes, designed interactive web mapping of model test results, conducted network and other spatial
analysis to identify rational service areas and analyzed, in CIS, the relationship between current federal resources and new impact
testing designation areas. Coordinated with HRSA staff on the building, results and analysis of impact testing models.

2019 Health Equity Report Design and GIS Mapping of Measures.
Project Director for HRSA's 2019 Health Equity Report design, data compilation and mapping. Responsible for overseeing
design staff in the development of a report template, copyediting, 508 compliance and final publication-ready production of the
report. In addition, the project required extensive American Community Survey (ACS) and county health rankings data gathering
and mapping. ACS data, across 25 demographic and socio-economic themes, was compiled nationwide at multiple geographic
levels. Selected data was mapped for inclusion in the next report.

UDS Service Area Mapping & Analysis
Creation of service area and penetration mapping for the Uniform Data System (UDS) project. This included creating service
areas, mapping and applying the results to analyze the effectiveness and rationality of service areas. GIS methods include spatial
overlay geo-tagging linking zip codes with Zip Code Tabulation Areas (ZCTA), make table queries to create grantee specific
overlapping service areas from non-unique grantee by ZCTA tables, minimum bounding envelopes to identify irrational service
areas and data-driven pages that focus on one grantee's patient origin service area at a time.

\

Interactive Web Mapping

Created interactive web mapping applications that allow clients and the public to explore mapped information, search by
addresses or postal codes, pan, zoom and identify on map features. A story map visualizing the tobacco retail access in Vermont
is an immersive web application that uses maps, animation and other graphic elements to tell the story of tobacco access.
https://ahs-vt.maDs.arcgis.com/apps/Cascade/index.html?aDDid=61dl3e4de0934Sac9lea997e3464fe6b A web map of the
geography of Maternal and Child Health in Delaware explores the geographic scope and accessibility of services and health
metrics in Delaware. (http://isl.maps.arceis.com/aDDs/MapSeries/index.html?appid=25a5648e2de440ad81433cdfdQf6124b1.. Both
web applications utilize the ArcGIS Online web mapping platform.

Primary care Utilization Surge from Affordable care Act
Mapping and analysis support for the project included: Spatial Analysis to estimate the Primary care utilization increase expected
from full implementation of the Affordable Care Act. This included integrating demographic data and predictive model output at
the local level and presenting results in detailed maps. Conducted a small area analysis to spread expected coverage gainers from
Census PUMA5 areas to small local geographies based on age and income factors.

Nashua Regional Planning Commission, Merrimack, New Hampshire
GIS Manager, 2004

Manage the GIS program for the agency. Write reports and handle technical analysis. Responsible for the day-to-day operation of
the GIS section. Project Management, GIS database management, map creation and analysis, and hiring, supervising, and
evaluating of staff.

University of Florida College of Health Professions, Gainesville, Florida
GIS Consultant, 2002

Conducted health related service area spatial analysis of Medicaid providers to identify gaps in medical coverage. Analyzed
Census Demographic data to create a risk of no insurance atlas for the Florida KidCare Program.

Adjunct Academic Appointments

University of Mary Washington, Fredericksburg Virginia
Adjunct Professor ofGeography, 2020-2022

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, New Hampshire
Adjunct Professor ofGeography, 2014

R.I^B
S. Schaffer 2



DocuSign Envelope ID; 76243293-6666-48C1-913C-C03FC8BCCF25

Relevant Skills

•  ArcGIS Pro and ArcGIS Desktop and extensions
•  ArcGIS Enterprise / Online and Google Maps API
•  Focus on demographic and Spatial Accessibility Analysis
•  Comprehensive knowledge of Census data including American Community Survey
•  Transportation and land use modeling
•  Spatial and traditional statistical analysis

E
S. Schaffer 3
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Kees van Hemmen

EDUCATION

Northeastern University, Boston, MA

Bachelor of Science in Data Science, Magna Cum Laude, 2023
Minor Political Science

EXPERIENCE

JSl Research & Traioing Institute, Boston, Massachusetts
Database Development Analyst, 2023 - Present

Current Projects:

Uniform Data System (UDS):

Yearly project facilitating the exchange of data between individual healthcare centers and HRSA regarding Aided in the
development of data pipelines, including the design and development of database tables and queries, that found inconsistencies
in the ̂ ta provided by health care centers nationwide in their reporting to HRSA on a variety of key data. Reviewed and
documented the data submitted by health centers in order to generate a centralized reference point for what each datapoint means
for those working with UDS data.

Hawaii State Department of Health, OfTice of Primary Care and Rural Health, Workforce/Provider Trainings:
Data support for a series of three contracts aimed to train and provide technical assistance to HI DOH staff on the processes
involved in acquiring and analyzing claims, provider, and demographic data, training on the rules, data evaluation, and preparing
federal shortage designation applications, and how to assess service areas for statewide capacity and area planning.

Maine Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health Primary Care Office (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity:

Data support for the state of Maine's woricforce shortage process. Provide ongoing support and training to the agency on the
shortage designation process and online SDMS application system. Procure, clean, link, and analyze data relevant to assess
woHcforce capacity, including visit claims, provider licensure and survey data, population demographics, tourism, and health
disparity data. Analyzed data using linked CIS, Microsoft Access, and Excel databases to assess areas of workforce shortages
and statewide service areas. Field and analyze statewide provider capacity surveys using Alchemer (physicians, psychiatrists, and
dentists). Assess service areas for statewide capacity and area planning.

Massachusetts Department of Public Health, Primary Care Office (PCO), Workforce/Provider Capacity:
Data support for the general and primary care healthcare workforce shortage designation process developed to support
communities with the greatest unmet healthcare needs, disparities, health workforce shortages, and other healthcare access
barriers in Massachusetts. Identify areas meeting the federal criteria for health professional shortage area (HPSA) and medically
underserved area/population (MUA/P). Assess service areas statewide using geographic information systems (CIS) mapping,
patient origin, U.S. Census, providers, claims, and other integrated data sources. Develop shortage designation applications using
federal requirements, assess provider capacity by coimecting with area experts and surveying providers, and utilize the online
federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) for all aspects of designations. Develop and validate the health care
workforce statewide using the online survey tool, Alchemer. Evaluate provider capacity statewide of physicians, physician
assistants, nurse practitioners, substance use disorder experts, mental health providers, and dentists.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health and Primary Care Section (PCO),
Workforce/Provider Capacity:
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Data support for the general and primary care healthcare workforce shortage designation process developed to support
communities with the greatest unmet healthcare needs, disparities, health woiidbrce shortages, and other healthcare access
barriers in New Hampshire. Identify areas meeting the federal criteria for health professional shortage area (HPSA) and
medically underserved area/population (MUA/P). Assess service areas statewide using geographic information systems (CIS)
mapping, patient origin, U.S. Census, providers, claims, and other integrated data sources. Develop shortage designation
qjplications using federal requirements, assess provider capacity by connecting with area experts and surveying providers, and
utilize the online federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) for all aspects of designations. Develop and
validate the health care workforce statewide using the online survey tool, Alchemer. Evaluate provider capacity statewide of
physicians, physician assistants, nurse practitioners, substance use disorder experts, mental health providers, and dentists.

Wyoming Department of Health, Public Health Division (PCO), Workforce/Provider Capacity:
Data support for the HPSA analysis and designation project for the state of \^^oming. Process and submit new and renewal
shortage designation applications, including development of service areas through the SDMS that meet the Bureau of Health
Workforce requirements for designations. Develop and analyze results of web-based statewide surveys using Alchemer of
physicians, mental health providers, and dental providers. Develop standard operating procedures and trainings for project staff
regarding designations and provider management.

New England Rural Health Databook (NERHDB):
Decennial project compiling data on social determinants of health and health outcomes across urban and non-urban (rural) areas
across New England. Aided in the compilation, cleaning, and automation of analytical processes that allowed for the creation of
the databook. Found and evaluated the usability and validity of new data sources to replace defunct datasets.

PriceliDe.com, New Yoric City, New York

Data Engineer Intern, July 2022 - December 2022
•  Created dashboards in Tableau to analyze data usage trends in support of a company-wide switch to Google Cloud Platform
• Monitored internal data usage trends using Google BigQuery and SQL

McKinsey and Co., Waltharo, Massachusetts

Knowledge Engineer and Data Analyst Intern, July 2021 - December 2021
• Automated key processes in the internal data provision pipeline hosted on AWS using Python, as well as various external APIs

including Google's Knowledge Graph API
•  Reduced failed searches on an internal database by 70% using Python and Neo4j

ServiceNow Inc., Santa Clara, California

Product Pricing Analyst, July 2020 ■ June 2021

• Maintained data quality for a variety of sales related datasets in Excel and SQL
• Designed and maintained various dashboards for reporting on program performance in Tableau that were used by C suite level

stakeholders
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Emily Lu

Education

Dartmouth College, Hanover, New Hampshire
Bachelor of Arts, Anthropology modified with Geography. Minor in Public Policy. 2023

Experience

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc., Bow, New Hampshire
Project Associate. Aug. 2023-present

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, Health Resources and Services Administration, Bureau of
Primary Health Care (BPHC) Uniform Data System
Serves as systems operational lead for implementation of the Uniform Data System (UDS), which collects information
annually from over 1,400 federally qualified health centers (FQHCs) nationwide. Oversees functional testing and
maintenance of UDS reporting platforms, including identifying enhancement opportunities. Assists health centers
completing the UDS by providing direct technical assistance and creating technical assistance resources. Reviews data
quality and engages in central analysis during aiuiual UDS review period.

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services, Rural Health and Primary Care Section,
Workforce/Provider Capacity
Provides project assistance for healthcare woricforce shortage designation processes in New Hampshire, aimed to help
communities with the greatest unmet health care needs, disparities, capacity shortages, and other health care access
barriers in the state. Identifies and reviews areas meeting the federal criteria for HPSAs and MUA/Ps. Develops shortage
designation applications using federal requirements, assesses provider capacity by analyzing provider survey data, and
utilizes the federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) for all aspects of designations.

Hawaii State Department of Health, Office of Primary Care and Rural Health, Workforce/Provider Trainings
Provides support and training on a series of three contracts aimed to provide technical assistance to HI DOH staff on the
processes involved in acquiring and analyzing claims, provider, and demographic data, conducting data evaluation,
preparing federal shortage designation applications, and assessing service areas for statewide capacity and area planning.
Conducts qualitative research on unique health care needs within the state to support designation application.

Rhode Island Department of Health, OfBce of Primary Care and Rural Health, Workforce/Provider Capacity
Provides project support and coordination for shortage designation applications in the state of Rhode Island. Assists
applications, including development of service areas through the SDMS that meet the Bureau of Health Workforce
requirements. Utilizes federal Shortage Designation Management System (SDMS) to complete aspects of the
designations process.

Department of Anthropology, Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH
Presidential Research Scholar, Aug. 2020 - May 2023
Designed cohort study-to analyze physiological impacts of stress from assisted reproductive technologies (ART) on maternal
health, with funding from Claire Garber Goodman Fund. Analyzed relationship between ART-related stressors and depression
data through regression models in Stata. Presented findings at Developmental Origins of Health and Disease World Congress in
Vancouver, August 2022.

United States Senate, Washington, D.C.
Legislative intern, Sept. 2021-Dec. 2021
Produced health policy memos with recommendations for the Senator on upcoming votes and proposed bills. Received and
managed more than 80 constituent phone calls, voicemails, and faxes each day centered on issues of Medicare, budget
reconciliation, and COVID-19 concerns.
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Class of 1964 Policy Research Shop, Dartmouth College, Hanover, NH
Research Consultant. Nov. 2020 - May 2021
Presented non-partisan research on the environmental and health impacts of heonicotinoid pesticides to New Hampshire House of
Representatives Agriculture and Environment Committee during 2021 legislative session. Conducted stakeholder interviews and
cost-benefit analysis to inform legislation regulating neonicotinoid use.

The Dartmouth Institute for Health Policy and Clinical Practice, Hanover, NH
Research Assistant, Feb. 2020 - Dec. 2020

Co-authored paper analyzing preference and understanding of risk information in healthcare settings, published in
peer-reviewed journal PLOS One. Aided production ofQualtrics survey materials to determine optimal presentation (icon array
vs bar graph) of risk to patients.

SKILLS

Proficiency in: Microsoft Office, R, Stata, ArcGIS, 508 Compliance, Mailchimp
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JSl Research and Training Institute, Inc.

Key Personnel

Name Job Title

Salary per Year
% Paid from

this Contract

Total Amount Paid from this

Contract

(July 1,2023-June30, 2026)

Diane Lewis Project Director $121,275.00 5% $  29,320.00

Eric Turer Technical Advisor $172,781.47 3% $  25,920.00

Alyssa Carlisle Project Manager $71,400.00 2% $  9,755.00

Emily Lu Project Associate $52,500.00 5% $  13.390.00

Steve Schaffer GIS/Data Analyst $122,850.00 2% $  13,720.00

Kees van Hemmen Database Analyst $70,000.00 1% $  4,363.00
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

DlVISiOfV OF PVBUC HEAL TH SER VICES

19 HAZEN DRIVE, CONCORD, NH 03301
00»7I^I lA004S20345CttiSOl

Fu: <034?I-4S27 Access: l-aOO.?3S-2M4
wwwilhfu.oh.gov

2A

May 16, 2022

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services. Division of Public Health
Services, to enter into a contract with JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc. (VC#161611-B001),
Bow, NH. in the amount of S63,760 to coordinate Federal Shortage Designations within the state,
assist in the development of a primary care assessment, and Health Professions Data Center
survey development and analyse, with the option to renew for up to two (2) additional years,
effective July 1, 2022, upon Governor and Council approval, through June 30, 2024. 100%
General Funds.

Funds are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2023, and are .
anticipated to be available in State Fiscal Year 2024, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds in the future operatingbudget.with the authority toadjust budget line items
within the price limitation and encumbrances between state fiscal years through the Budget Office,
if needed and justiTied.

OS.9S-90-901010-79650000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES. DEPT OF HEALTH AND
HUMAN SV8. HHS: DIVISION OF PUBUC HEALTH. BUREAU OF HEALTHCARE ACCESS.
EQUITY. AND POLICY. RURAL HEALTH AND PRIMARY CARE

State

Fiscal Year

Class/

Account
Class Title Job Number

p

Total Amount

2023 102-500731 Contracts for Opr Svc 90072009 $31,880

2024 102-500731 , Coritracts for Opr Svc 90072009 $31,880

Total '  $63,760;

EXPLANATION

'' The purpose of this request is for the Contractor to oversee the State's-Health Professional
Shortage Areas .short^e designations, assist in the development of a primary care assessment,
and conduct survey analysis as required by the United States Depadment of Health and Human
Services, Health Resource and Services Administration, Bureau of Health Worlcforce, Division of
Policy and Shortage Designation.

The Contractor win continually identify areas of the state that meet the federal criteria for
Health Professional Shortage Areas, f^ental Health Professional Shortage Areas, Dental Health
Professional Shortage Areas, Medically Underserved Areas/Populations, and ^vemor's

The OeporlniMl Htalth and Human Seroieee'Miition i$ to icin eommuniiies end /amiliee
in prouiding opportunitUi for 10 aehieue heallh and independenoe.
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His ExooQenqr, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
end the HonoreUe Council

Page 2 of 2

Exceptional Medically Underserved Population Areas. The Contractor will develop a Statewide
Rational Service Area Plan to identify and submit areas of unmet need for designation.
Additionally, the Contractor vt^l conduct an overall primary care needs assessment to identify and
report on toy barriers to accessing health care in these communities.

The Identification of worldorce and health disparities and processing of shortage
designations will benefit communities in New Hampshire that face barriers to accessing primary
care, especially rural, low income, uninsured, and .Medicaid and Medicare populations.
Designation as a Health Professional Shortage Area enables eligibility for a number of federal
and state programs designed to recruit and retain providers in underserved areas. Additionally.
Medicare distributes bonus payments to primary care physicians and psychiatrists who practice
in designated Health Professional Shortage Areas.

The Department will monitor services by ensuring the Contractor

« Performs annual updates on the statewide primary care needs assessment by the
federal deadline.

• Completes shortage designations and re*deslgnations by the federal deadline. .

• Analyzes and provides demographic data and renewal data to determine other
areas for shortage designation or re-designatlon to the-Department throughout the
contract period.

The Department selected the Contractor through a competitive bid process using a
Request for Applications (RFA) that was posted on the.Department's website from February 4;
2022 through March 17, 2022. The Oepartrrient received three (3) responses that were reviewed
and scored by a team of qualified individuals. The Scoring Sheet is attached.

As referenced in Eidiibit A of the attached agreement, the parties have the option to
extend the agreement for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon satisfactqry delivery of
services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and Governor and Council approval.

Should the Govemorand Council not authorize this request, the Department may not have
the ability to identify areas in the state where there are shortages of primary care providers, which
may result in primary care physicians and psychiatrists wtx> practice in designated Health
Prcrfessional Shortage Areas to potentially lose funding and individuals not havirig access to
necessary healthcare services.

Area served: Statewide.

Source of Furxjs: 100% General Funds!

Respectfully submitted,

Lori A. Shibinette

Commissioner
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Division of Finance and Procurement

Bureau of Contracts and Procurement

Scoring Sheet

Project ID# fRFA'2022'OPHS-l 1 -HEALT
Project Title Health Workforce and Primarw ffare Access Data

Z!

Maximum

Points

Available

Grandeis

University
JSI PrimaryCare f

Development •;
Corporation i
(PCDC) i

1

Technical 1
Ability 01 40 25 40 20

Knowledge 02 60 30 50 ^  30

Experience 03 100 50 100 55

TOTAL POINTS 200 105 190 105

Reviewer Name TIDe

1 (Danielle Hernandez Healih Professions Daia Center Manager

2iUsaCacciola Finance Administrator

SlJanine^ainyyrjght
4;|Ali$a.0ruzba

Primary Care Workforce Program Specialist
Rural Health and Primary Care Administrator
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FORM NUMBER P.37 (version 12/11/2019)

Subject: Health Workforce and Primary Care Access Daia(RFA-2022-DPHS-I l-HEALT-Ol)

Notice: This agreemeni and all of its aitachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, conndeniial or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to sighing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire nnd the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

I.I State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services

1.2 State Agency Address

(29 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301-3857

1.3 Contractor Name

JSI Research & Training Institute, Inc.

1

L4 Contractor Address

501 South Street, 2"^ Floor,
Bow. NH 03304

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-573-3307 .

1.6 Account Number
I

O5-95-90-90I0IO-'
79650000

1.7 Completion Date

6/30/2024

1.8 Price Limiiaiion

S63.760

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency

Robert W. Moore, Director

1.10 Slate AgencyTelephone Number

(603)271-9631

1.11 Contractor Signature

.  • Dair Vn/2C

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory '"

Katie Robert

Di rector

1.13

y  Ooc«S>9)i«rf by:

TilUy Dale: 6/2/202

1.14 Name and Title of Stale Agency Signatory
Patricia m. Tilley

^  Director

1.15 ApprSvafST'i^^-P- DcpJ^tmcni of Administration. Division of Personnel (if applicable) '

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (FwTn, Substance am! Execution) (ifapplicable)

On: 6/8/2022

1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council (ifapplicable)

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:

Page 1 of 4
Contractor Ini tbis

Date.

re
I tnlcV
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERPORMEO. The Slate of New

Hampshire, aciing through the agency identified in block I.I
(''State"), engages coniractor identified in block 1.3
("Contractor") to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the
work or sale of goods, or both, identified and more particularly
described in the attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated
herein by reference ("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/CGMPLETIGN GF SERVICES.
3. r Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement tp the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable,
this Agirement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder. shall
become effective on the date the Oovemor and E.xecutive
Council approve this Agreement a.s .indicated in block 1.17,
unless no such approval is required, in which case the Agreement
shall become effective on (he date the Agreement is signed by
(he Slate Agency as shown in block 1.13 ("Effective Date").
3.2 [f (he Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Dale, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to
(he Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event (hat (his Agreement does not become
elective, the State shall have no liability to the Contractor,
including without limitation, any obligation to pay the
Contractor for any costs incurred or ^rvlces performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIGNAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of
funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive
action (hat reduces, eliminates or otherwise modifies the
appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and.
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole.or in
part. In no event shall the State be liable for any payments
hereunder in excess of such available appropriated funds. In the
event of a reduction or termination of appropriated funds, the
State .shall have (he right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, .and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Servicc.s under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the'Contractor notice of such reduction or termination.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
account or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the

even! funds in that Account arc reduced or unavailable.

5. CGNTRACT FRICE/PRICE LIMlTATIGN/

PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of piaymeht, and ternui of payment
are identified and niore panicularly described in EXHIBIT C
which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to (he Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete

compe.nsaiion to the Contractor for the Services. The State shall
■have no liabiltly to the Contractor other than the contract price.
5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Coniractor under (his Agreement (hose
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA 80:7
through RSA 60:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to (he
con(mry, and no(wjth$tanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall (he total of all payments auihorixed, or actually made
hereunder, exceed (he Price Limitation-set forth in block 1.8.

6. CGMPLIANCE BY CGNTRACTGR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIGNS/ EQUAL EMPLGYMENT
GPPGRTUNITY.
6.1 In connection with the performance of (he Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to. civil ri ghts and equal
employment opportunity laws. In addition, if this Agreement is
funded in any pan by monies of (he United States, (he Contractor
shall comply with all federal executive orde^, rules, regulations
and statutes, and with any rules, regulations and guidelines as the
State or ite United Stales issue to implement these regulations.
The Contractor shall also comply with all applicable Intellectual
property laws.
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall riot
discriminate against employees or applicant.^ for employment
because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex. handicap, sexual
orientation, or national origin and will take affirmative action to
prevent such discrimination.
6.3. The Contractor agrees to permit (he State or United States
access to any of (he Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance vvith all rules, regulations
and orders, and the covenants, terms and conditions of (his
Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 ThcContracior shall at its own expense provideall personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that
all personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to
perform the Services, and shall be properjy licensed and
otherwise auihorixcd to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 Unless otherwise aulhorixed in writing, during (he term of
(his Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7. the Contractor shall not hire, and
shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who Is a State employee
or official, who is materially involved in the procurement,
administration or performance of this Agreement. This
provision shall survive terminal ion of this Agreement
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, shall be (he State's representative. In the event of any
dispute concerning the interpretation of (his Agreement, the
Contracting Officer's decLsion shall be final for the State.
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B. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8. 1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event

of Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all. of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of
a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) days from the
date ofihe notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely cured,
terminate thi.s Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Contractor notice of termination;

8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may
owe to the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of
any Eveni of Default; and/or
8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default, treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the
Agreement and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or
both.

8.3. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof after
any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with
regard to that Event of Default, or any subsequent Event of
Default. No express failure to enforce any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and
all of the provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of
Default on the part of the Contractor.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwith.standing paragraph 8, the State may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any rea.^on. in whole or
in pan, by thirty (30) days uritten notice to the Contractor that
the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for
any reason other than the completion of the Services, the
Contractor shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the

Contracting O^cer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date
of termination, a report ('Termination Repon") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The foi^, subject matter,
content, and number of copies of the Tcnnination Report shall
be identical to those of any Final Report described In the attached
EXHIBIT B. in addition, at (he State's discretion, the Contractor
shall, within IS days of notice of early termination, develop and

Page

submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the

Agreement.

10. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/

PRESERVATION.

to. I As used in this Agreement, the w/ord "data" shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of. this
Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recording.^, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and documents, all whether
finished or unfinished.

10.2 All data-and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this'Agrecment, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the Slate upon demand or upon termination
of this Agreement for any reason.
10.3 Conndeniiallty ofdata shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 9(*A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

n. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE CTATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects
an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an
employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, empioyee.s, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation or
other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSlCNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS,
12.1 The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice, which
shall be provided to the State at least fifteen (13) days prior to
the assignment, and a written consent of the State. For purposes
of this paragraph, a Change of Control shall constitute
assignment. "Change of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which.a third parly, loget^her with its affiliates, becomes the
direct or indirect owner of fifty percent (30%) or more of the
voting .shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting
power of the Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all
of the assets of the Contractor.

12.2 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by (he
Contractor without prior written notice and consent of the State.
The State Is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and assignment
agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions contained
In a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it is not a
party. '

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Unless otherwise exempted by law,
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State, its
officers and employees, from and against any and all claims,
liabilities and costs for any personal injury or property damages,
patent or copyright infringement, or other claims asserted against
the State, its ofHcers oremployees. which arise oiit of (or which
may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omiiriA^f (he
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Contractor, or subcontractors, including but not limited to the
negligence, reckless or intentional conduct. The State shall not
be liable for any costs incurred by the Contractor arising under
this paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
•contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign
immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the
termination of this Agreement. •

14. INSURANCE.
14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any
subcontractor or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the
following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims
or bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not
less than $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate
or excess; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all property
subject to subporagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement t^lue of the propeay.
14.2 The policies described in subpamgraph 14.1 herein shall be
on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State
of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and
issued by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Coniroctor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9. or his or her successor, a cenificaiefs) of
irtsurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer identified
in block 1.9, or his or her successor. certirtca(e<s) of insurance
for all renewals) of insurance required under this Agreement no
later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration date of each
insurance policy. The certific3te(s) of insurance and any
renewals thereof shall be attached and are incorporated herein by
reference.

15. WORKERS' COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing (his agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies
and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt
from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements
of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and
require any subcontractor or assignee to secure nrid maintain,
payment of Workers' Compensation in connection with
activities which the person proposes to undertake pursuant to this
Agreement. The Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, proof of Workers'
Compensation in the manner described in N.H. RSA chapter
281-A and any applicable renewal(s) thereof, which .shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Jhe State
shall not be responsible for payment of any Workers'
Compensation premiums or for any other claim or benefit for
Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of Contractor,
which might arise under applicable State of New Hampshire
Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services undcf,this Agreement.

16. NOTICE; Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time
of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United States
Post Office addressed to the parties at the address given in
blocks 1.2 and 1.4,herein.

17. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived
or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the
parties hereto and only after approval of such amendment,
waiver or discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire unless no such approval is required
under the circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

18. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM. This Agreement shall
be governed, interpreted and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and a.ss>gns. The wording used in this Agreement is the wording
chosen by the parties to express their mutual Intent, and no rule
of construction shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
Any actions arising out of this Agreement shall be brought and
maintained in New Hampshire Superior Court which shall have
exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

19. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a connict

between the terms of this P-37 form (os modified in EXHIBIT
A) and/or attachments and amendment thereof, the terms of the
P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and (his Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEIADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and (he words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

23. SEVERABILITV. (n the event any of the provisions of (his
Agreement are held by a court of competent juri^iction to be
contrary to any state or federal law. the remaining provisions of
Ihi.s Agreement will remain in full force and cfTect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counteiparts, each of which shall be
deemed on original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, und supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Revisions to Standard Agreement Provisions

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Paragraph 3, Subparagraph 3.1, Effective, Dale/Completion of Services, is
amended as follows:

3.1. Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, and
subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive Council of the
Slate of New Hampshire as indicated in block 1.17, this Agreement, and
all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become effective on July 1,
2022 ("Effective Date"), upon Governor and Executive Council approval.

1.2. Paragraph 3, Effective Dale/Completion of Services, is amended by adding
subparagraph 3.3 as follows:

3.3. The parties may extend the Agreement for up two (2) additional years
from the Completion Date, contingent upon satisfactory delivery of

.. services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of the
Governor and Executive Council.

1.3. Paragraph 12, Assignment/Detegation/Subcontracts, Is amended by adding
subparagraph 12.3 as follows:

12.3. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual conditions as the
Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor
compliance with those conditions. The Contractor shall have written
agreements with all subcontractors, specifying the work to be performed,
and if applicabte, a Business Associate Agreement in accordance with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Written
agreements shall specify how corrective action shall be managed. The
Contractor shall manage the subcontractor's performance on an ongoing
basis and take corrective action as necessary. The Contractor shall ̂
annually provide the State with a list of all subcontractors provided for '
under this Agreement and notify the State of any inadequate
subcontractor performance.
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

1. Statement of Work

1.1. The Contractor shall conduct an overall statewide primary care assessment
that identifies communities vwlh the greatest unmet health care needs,
disparities, and health workforce shortage and key barriers to access to health
care in these communities. The Contractor shall identify geographic areas and
populations at county and sub-county, town and/or zip code levels that:

1.1.1. Lack access to preventative and primary care services;

1.1.2. Experience shortage of primary care, mental health, and dental
providers;

1.1.3. Experience key barriers to accessing health care, including wait and
travel time; and

1.1.4. Demonstrate the highest-need for health service by utilizing indicators
or poverty, infant mortality, low-birth weight, life expectancy, percent
or numbers unserved and underserved and designation as a
Medically Underserved Areas (MUA) / Medical Underserved
Populations (MUP) or Health Professional Shortage Areas (HPSA).

'  1.2. The Contractor shall conduct a meeting with Department staff to discuss the
specific analytic aspects of the needs assessment which shall include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.1. Range of available data.

1.2.2. Level of geographic detail required.

1.2.3. Statistical approaches to be employed.

1.2.4. Definitions to be used.

1.3. The Contractor, in conjunction with the Department, shall implement an
effective data sharing plan to collect and analyze health data and other
inforrnation as part of the needs assessment by utilizing data from the
Department's NH Claim's Data Sets within the New Hampshire Comprehensive
Health Care Information Systems (CHIS).

1.4. The Contractor shall consult with the Department's Office of Rural Health and
Primary Care (RHPC) to coordinate and prioritize new shortage area
designation and re-designations requests. The Contractor shall:

1.4.1. Provide information, assistance or updates to interested parties in
areas under review for Federal Shortage Designations.

1.4.2. Notify all known interested parties following the HPSA/MUA/MUP
determined designation. /—w
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1.4.3. Be available to respond to follow-up questions or inquiries regarding
completed Federal Shortage Designation applications.

1.4.4. Evaluate population to provider ratio and high need indicators within
potential Federal Shortage Designation areas using available
electronic application systems, Health Professions Data Center
(HPDC) provider data, and targeted-area surveys.

1.4.5. Prepare all necessary documentation, using the Health Resource and
Sen/ices Administration (HRSA) Shortage Designation l\Aanagement
System (SDMS), to support designation and re-designation requests
to HRSA. for approval by, the Department.

1.4.6. Submit all data and full-time equivalent (PTEs) associated with an
update cycle prior to the cycle opening date determined by the federal
Shortage Designation Branch (SDB).

1.5. The Contractor shall develop a'Statewide Rational Service Area (SRSA) Plan
for primary, dental, and mental health designations by:

1.5.1. Conducting origin-designation analyses on claims data across the
three (3) primary care disciplines by calculating travel times to care,
average primary care visit rates per enrollee member year, and
differential visit rates between populations with different insurance
coverage:

1.5.2. Conducting a catchment area analysis to best.relate population to
'  existing capacity based on physical proximity and creating integrated

Geographic Information System (Gisj analysis to analyze geographic
and financial access/health care status barriers collectively; and

1.5.3. Conducting impact analyses by calculating designation and scoring
potential, and the impact of the new SRSA approach on several
parameters.

1.6. The Contractor shall assist with provider workforce survey development, data
cleaning and analysis for the Department's HPDC.

1.7. The Contractor shall enter and utilize data from the HPDC and other integrated
data sources in SDMS to accurately evaluate Federal Shortage. Designation
applications and identify and assess areas of the state eligible for Federal
Shortage Designations.

1.8. The Contractor shall produce colored GIS-type maps that are compatible with
Microsoft and PDF formats, noting shortage areas, at the town level and list
tovyns, hospitals, health centers and other health facilities within each type of
shortage area.

1.9. The Contractor shall develop a web-based user interface of maps i
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Federal Shortage Designations, access pattern and capacity within the state
for public and stakeholder use to review designations. The Contractor shall:

1.9.1. Design the interface to include multi-layer maps to visualize access
patterns for primary care and related preventative sen/ices, including
but not limited to:

1.9.1.1. Public health network region.

1.9.1.2. Health center name and score.

1.9.1.3. Drive time.

1.9.1.4. Population to provider ratio.

1.10. The Contractor shall host map links and content on their website.

1.11. The Contractor shall assist the Department by planning and reviewing annual
health professions issue briefs that summarize the: findings of the work
completed by the HPDC.

1.12. The Contractor shall design RHPC logos and other branding materials, as
requested and shall participate in other health workplace activities as
determined by and in conjunction with the Department.

1.13. Work Plan

1.13.1. The Contractor shall provide a Work Plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days of the Contract effective date and annually thereafter
that include:

1.13.1.1. Baseline and targets; and

1.13.1.2. Activities including the responsible Individual(s), timeline,
and target population.

1.13.2. The Contractor shall develop and submit to the Department annually
a corrective action plan for any performance measure not achieved.

1.14. Project fvlanagement

1,14.1. The Contractor shall conduct a project kick-off meeting or tele
conference with the Department staff within thirty (30) days of the
contract effective date to:

1.14.1.1. Review and define the goals, objectives and milestones;
revise the Work Plan as needed; and to resolve any
questions or issues regarding the Work Plan.

1.14.1.2. Ensure the Work Plan outlines the required activities and
Includes a timeline with clearly identified target dates for
each activity.
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1.14.2. The Conlraclor shall utilize the Work Plan to ensure progress towards
meeting the performance measures and the overall program
objectives and goals.

1.15. Meetings and Trainings

1.15.1. The Contractor shall attend at a minimum one (1) virtual or in-person
meeting at the Department Offices, annually, with Department staff to
present summaries of the overall needs assessment performed in this
resulting contract.

1.15.2. The Contractor shall participate in monthly conference calls to review
activities, interventions and progress.

1.15.3. The Contractor shall attend meetings with representatives from the
Department and/or other State Officials to report on program
progress.

1.15.4. The Contractor shall.ensure all Contractor staff has appropriate
training, education, experience and orientation; Including training in
information security and confidentiality safeguards according to state
rules arid state and federal laws, to fulfill the requirements of the
position they hold and shall verify and document meeting this
requirerrient. This includes keeping up-to-date records and
documentation of all individuals requiring licenses and/or
certifications and such records shall be available for Department
review.

1.16. Data Sharing Plan

1.16.1. The Contractor shall not collect, receive, store, or manage
confidential data related to the scope of work and deliverables
identified in this Exhibit B unless or until the parties have agreed in

^ writing to a Data Sharing Plan that must include;

1.16.1.1. The purpose of the data exchange;

1.16.1.2. A description of the Department data elements to be
disclosed, including;

1.16.1.2.1. Source or Systems of Records;
1.16.1.2.2. Number of Records Involved and Operational

Time Factors;
1.16.1.2.3. DataElements Involved; and '
1.16.1.2.4. Reporting and. Secure Transmission of

Confidential Data.

1.16.1.3. A description of the Contractor data elements to be
disclosed; and

01

&RFA-2022-DPHS-n-HeALT-Ol B-2.0 Conlractof Initials'

JSI Research 8 Training Instame. Inc. Page 4 of 8 Gate



DocuSign Envelope la 76243293466&-4SC1-ei3C-CD3FCeBCCF25

OOCuSIgn Envelope 10: F8lECt 13.36BO-M82-96A1-3E6C90O3E9S&

New Hampshire Department ot Health and Human Services
Health Workforce and Primary Care Access Data

EXHIBIT B

1.16.1.4. The responsibilities of both parties regarding the exchange
of data.

1.16.2. The Contractor shall execute the Data Sharing Plan in a timely
manner so as not to impede the scope of work and deliverables
identified in this Exhibit B..

1.16.3. The Contractor agrees to modify the Data Sharing Plan in writing as
necessary, due to any changes to the scope of work and deliverables
identified in this Exhibit B.

1.16.4. The Contractor shall comply with the terms of Exhibit K, DHHS
Information Security Requirements, attached hereto and incorporated
by reference herein.

1.17. Reporting

1.17.1. The Contractor shall provide written progress reports to the
Department upon request throughout the contract period and a final
progress report at the end of the contract period in a format requested
by the Department.

1.17.2. The Contractor shall ensure reports include, but are not limited to:

1.17.2.1. Work completed since the prior report.

1.17.2.2. Progress on tasks/deliverables still in progress.

1.17.2.3. Barriers preventing completion of tasks/deliverables and
how to overcome those barriers.

1.17.2.4. Outstanding items and any issues/barriers that may cause
future issues.

1.17.3." The Contractor may be required to provide other key data and metrics
to the Department in a format specified by the Department.

1.18. Performance Measures

1.18.1. The Department will monitor the Contractors' performance by
ensuring the following performance measures are achieved annually
and monitored quarterly to measure the effectiveness of this
agreement.

1.18.1.1. Annual updates performed on the statewide primary care
needs assessment by the federal deadline.

1.18.1.2. Shortage designations and re-designations completed by
the federal deadline.

1.18.1.3. SRSA Plan completed by the federal deadline.

1.18.1.4. Analysis of demographic data and renewa/T^ates
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determining other areas for shortage designation or re-
designation provided to the Department throughout the
contract period.

1.18.1.5. Recurrent health professions surveys for the Health
Professions Workforce Data Center reviewed and subrriitled

to the Department throughout the contract period.

1.18.1.6. Accurate Health Professions Workforce Data Center data

uploaded into the Shortage Designation Management
System by the federal deadline.

1.18.2. The Department seeks to actively and regularly collaborate with
providers to enhance contract management, improve results, and
adjust program delivery and policy based on successfully outcomes.

1.18.3. The Department may collect other key data and metrics from
Contractor, including client-level demographic, performance, and
service data.

1.18.4. The Department may identify expectations for active and regular
collaboration, including key performance objectives, in .the resulting
contract. Where applicable, Contractor must collect and share data
with the Department in a format specified by the Department.

2. Exhibits Incorporated

2.1. The Contractor shall use and disclose Protected Health Information in
compliance with the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information (Privacy Rule) (45 CFR Parts 160 and 164) under the Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) of 1996, and in
accordance with the attached Exhibit I, Business Associate Agreement, which
has been executed by the parties.

2.2. The Contractor shall manage all confidential data related to this Agreement in
accordance with the terms of Exhibit . K, DHHS Information Security
Requirements.

2.3. The Contractor shall comply with all Exhibits D through K, which are attached
hereto and incorporated by reference herein.

3. Additional Terms

3.1. Impacts Resulting from Court Orders or Legislative Changes

3.1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future state or federal
legislation or court orders may have an impact on the Services
described herein, the State has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to aq(jieve
compliance therewith.
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3.2. Credits and Copyright Ownership

3.2.1. All documents, notices, press releases, research reports ancj other
materials prepared during or resulting from the performance of the
services of the Agreement shall include the following statement, "The
preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under an
Contract with the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and
Human Services, with funds provided in part by the State of New
Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g.. the United States Department of Health and Human
Services."

3.2.2. All materials produced or purchased under the Agreement shall have
prior approval from the Department before printing, production,

. distribution or use,

3.2.3. The Department shall retain copyright ownership for any and all
original materials produced, including, but not limited to:

3.2.3.1. Brochures.

3.2.3.2. Resource directories.

3.2.3.3. Protocols or guidelines.

3.2.3.4. Posters.

3-2.3.5. Reports.

3.2.4. The Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the
Agreement without prior written approval from the Department.

4. Records

4.1. The Contractor shall keep records that include, but are not limited to:

4.1.1. Books, records, documents and other electronic or physical data
evidencing and reflecting all costs and Other expenses incurred by the
Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all inconie received
or collected by the Contractor.

4.1.2. All records must be maintained in accordance with accounting
procedures and practices, which sufficiently and properly reflect all such
costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original
evidence of costs such as purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers,
requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of in-kind contributions,
labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by
the Department.

4.2. During the term of this Agreement and the period for retention hereurpe^* the

RFA-2022-OPHS-11-HEALT-01 B-2.0 Contfact» t^Ueb
5/31/2022
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EXHIBIT 8

Department, the United Slates Department of Health and Human Services, and
any of their designated representatives shall have access to all reports and
records maintained pursuant to the Agreement for purposes of audit,
examination, excerpts and transcripts. Upon the purchase by the Department
of the maximum number of units provided for in the Agreement and upon
payment of the price limitation hereunder, the Agreement and all the obligations
of the parties hereunder {except such obligations as, .by the terms of the
Agreement are to be performed after the end of the term of this Agreement
and/or survive the termination of the Agreement) shall terminate, provided
however, that if, upon review of the Final Expenditure Report the Department
shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as costs hereunder the
Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

4.3. Website

4.3.1. The Contractor shall work with the Department's Communications
Bureau to ensure that any website designed, created, or managed on
behalf of the Department meets all of the Department's and NH
Department of Information Technology's website requirements and
policies.

V.RFA-2022-OPHS-n-HEALT-01 B-2.0 Contraclof InOial*

^, 5/31/2022
JSl RessafCh & Trair^ng Irtttilute, Inc. Page B ol B Oala



DocuSign Envelope ID: 7624329^«666-46C1-913C-CD3FC68CCF25

OocuSign Envelope 10: F81ECl13-36eCM492-96AV3E6C90O3E9g8

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Health Workforce and Primary Care Access Data

EXHIBIT C

Payment Terms

1. This AgreemenI is funded by 100% General funds. For the purposes of this
Agreement. Ihe Department has identified:

1.1. The Contractor as a Conlraclor, in accordance with 2 CFR 200.331.

2. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures
incurred in the fulfillment of this Agreement, and shall be in accordance with
the approved line items, as specified in Exhibit 0-1, Budget through Exhibit 0-
2, Budget.

3. The Contractor shall submit an invoice with supporting documentation to the
Department no later than the fifteenth {15lh) working day of the month following
the month in which the services were provided. The Contractor shall ensure
each invoice:

3.1. Includes the Contractor's Vendor Number issued upon registering with
New Hampshire Department of Administrative Services.

3.2. Is submitted in a form that is provided by or otherwise acceptable to the
Department.

3.3. Identifies and requests payment for allowable costs incurred in the
previous month.

3.4. Includes supporting documentation of allowable costs with each invoice
that may include, but are not limited to, time sheets, payroll records,
receipts for purchases, and proof of expenditures, as applicable.

3.5. Is conhpleted. dated and returned to the Department with the supporting
documentation for allowable expenses to initiate payment.

3.6. Is assigned an electronic signature, includes supporting documentation,
and is emailed to DPHSContractBilling@dhhs.nh.gov or mailed to:

■; Financial Manager
Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street
Concord. NH 03301

4. The Department shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty (30) days
of receipt of each invoice and supporting documentation for authorized
expenses, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice.

5. The final invoice and supporting documentation for authorized expenses shall
be due to the Department no later than forty (40) days after the contract
completion date specified in Form P-37, General Provisions Block 1.7
Completion Date.

5RFA-2022-OPHS-1I-HEALT-01 C-2.0 Conlraaor lolllals
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EXHIBIT C

6. Notwithstanding Paragraph 17 of the General Provisions Form P-37, changes
limited to adjusting amounts within the price limitation and adjusting
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years and budget class lines through the
Budget Office may be made by written agreement of both parties, without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council, if needed and
justified.

7. Audits

7.1, The Contractor must email an annual audit to dhhs.act@dhhs.nh.gov if
any of the following conditions exist:

7.1.1. Condition A - The Contractor expended $750,000 or more in
federal funds received as a subrecipient pursuant to 2 CFR Part
200, during the /nost recently completed fiscal year.

7.1.2. Condition B - The Contractor is subject to audit pursuant to the
requirements of NH RSA 7:28, fll-b, pertaining to charitable
organizations receiving support of $1,000,000 or more.

7.1.3. Condition C - The Contractor is a public company and required
by Security and Exchange Commission (SEC) regulations to
submit an annual financial audit.

7.2. It Condition A exists, the Contractor shall submit an annual Single
Audit performed by an independent Certified Public Accountant (CPA)
to dhhs.acl@dhhs.nh.gov within 120 days after the close of the
Contractor's fiscal year, conducted in accordance with the
requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal awards.

7.2.1. The Contractor shall submit a copy of any Single Audit findings
and any associated corrective action plans. The Contractor
shall submit quarterly progress reports on the status of
implementation of the corrective actior^ plan.

7.3. If Condition B or Condition C exists, the Contractor shall submit an
annual financial audit performed by an independent CPA within 120
days after the close of the Contractor's fiscal year.

7.4.. In addition to, and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the
Contractor shall be held liable for any state or federal audit exceptions
and shall return to the Department all payments rnade under the
Contract to which exception has been taken, or which have been
disallowed because of such an exception.

RFA-2022-OPHS-11-HEALT-01 C-2.0 Contractor Initiate
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
' Comptete one tud^t torn for each bvdQet period.

ContracXor HamBi JSi Reseafch S Training instiiute, tiK. „

Budpet Request tor: Health Wortfforce and Pnmafy Care Access Data

Budget period SFY 2023 12022-June 30, 2023)

Indirect Cosl Rate (It applicable} 21.123% . .

Line item Program Cost • Funded by OHHS

1. Salary 4 Wages - .. - - - $17,901

2. ,Fringe Ben^ls se.396

3. Consultants $0

4. Equipment
cannot be cpfrScdtoaorjUpfn^nt costspor 9CFfi SOO. i

sndAprondMNtoiCfTtZOO.
$0

S.la) JSuooiies • Educational $0

5(h} Suoolies-. Lab $0

S.(c} SuDOiies • Pharrhacv so

S.td) .Supplies - Medical $0

S.(e} Suoolies Office .. $0

8.- Travel $0

7. Software
$0

8. (a) Other - Marketing/Communications ■  $0

8.'(bl Other ■ Education and IraininQ $0

8. (ci Other ' Other (specify below}
' Other (please specYyJ $0

Other (please spedty) $0

.Other (please spedty) $0

.Other (please specify) .  $0

3. Subreciplenl Contracts . JO

Total Direct Costs S26.297

Totailndirecl Cosis . S5.583

TOTAL .  ■ 431.680

-.09

5/31/2022
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New Hempshlre Oeperlmenl of Health end Human Services

CcmpMe one budget form tor each budget period.

Contractor Name; JS< Research S Training Institute, Inc.
Budget Request tor; Health Wgrkforce and Primary Care Access Oala.

^dget Period SFY 2024 (Juty 1. 2023 • June 30, 2024)
Indirect Cost Rale (If applicable) 2t.23%

Line Item Program Cost • Funded by DHHS

1 ■ . Salary & Wages $17,901

2. Fringe Benetils $8,396

3. Consultants $0

Equipment
tnfirvct cost rate CMr^nptteeppevi to equipmanicosti pet SCPft 200.1
an(SAfib»'ydi*tV\e?CfPSOO.

$0

5.(a). Supplies • Educaltonal JO
JO
$05.(0) Supplies • Pharmacy

5.Id) Sigplies • Medical $0

$05.{e) Supplies Office

6. Travel _$0

"io7. Software

8. (a) Other • Marketino/Communications
$0b) Other' Education and Training

8. (c) Other • Other (specify betow)
Other (please specify) $0

Other (please spedty) $0

Other (ptease sped
Other (please specifim.

$0

$0

9. Subrecipient Contracts $0

Total Direct Costs $26,297

Total Indirect Costs $5,583

TOTAL $31 ̂ 80

5/31/2022
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DocuSign Envelope 10:7624329>666&-48C1-913C-C03FC8BCCF25

OocuSign Envelope 10: F8lEClt3-3680-4492-96AI-3E6C9Q03E99B

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 0

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REqUIREMENTS

The Vendor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, TilleV, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.). and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1..12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification;

ALTERNATIVE I • FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDMOUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUfMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certiftcation is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Orug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 el seq.). The January 31.
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25,1990 Federal Register (pages
21681*21691). and require certiftcation by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors), prior to award, (hat they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of.certificales for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certificatron shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord. NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:
■  1.1. Pubdshing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's ,
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee lo be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy oif the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal^agency

5E)4)ibit 0 - Cettiflceiion (egsrding Oiug Free Vendor iniileK(
Wortcplace Requirements 5/31/2022
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a cenlral point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shaij include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions. wKhIn 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnei action against such an employee, up to and including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free wortcplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1,12.1.3, 1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the slte(s) for the performance of work done in
connection vrith the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Vendor Name: 3SI Research & Training institute, inc.

OMSIgfMtfbrMcwsignM 9T-

5/U/2022 )W<af
Dili

Title; Director

Eidiibit D - Ceitiricaliori regarding Drug Free Verwlor InlUata
WorVplace Requirements S/31/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Vendor identified in Seclion 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Govemment wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certifical'ion:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HIJMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS

US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (irKficate.applicable program covered):
'Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
'Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
'Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
'Medicaid Program under Title XIX
"Community Senhces Block Grant under Title VI
'Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agerKy, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an emptoyee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contraci, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sut>-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal apprr^riated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee, of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor). the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to •
Report Lobbyirig.'in accordance vvith its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be Included in the award
docum^t for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and thai all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SIO.OOO and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Vendor Name: 3Si Research & Training institute, inc.

DMv9lga«V

5/31/2022 Ut fil'Ul : '
Dale 'sSfflOaW-Robert

oi rector

ExNbU E - CeftiScsilon Regarding Lobbytng Vendor InHiabrfiate >

5/31/2022
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION

AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certfication set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below wiD not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification. Ihe certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether lo enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant lo furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government. DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate whiten notice to the DHHS agerx:y to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms 'covered transaction,' 'debarred,' 'suspended,' 'ineligit^e,' 'lower tier covered
transaction/ 'participant,' 'person,' 'primary covered transaction,' 'principal,' 'proposal,' and
'voluntarily excluded,' as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by sulxnitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lo^r tier covered
transaction with a person vrho is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting tftis proposal that if wll include the
clause titled "Certificatipn Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' provided by OHHS, v/ithout modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and In all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or Involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows^ that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may. but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishmerit of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge andj^

I W
Exh9)it F-Ceriiflcation Regarding Oebarmenl, Suspension ContrBCtor Inibeb* —

And Other Responsibaily MaRen S/31/2022
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed t)y a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly en^ into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal govemment. DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARy COVERED TRANSACTIONS

11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and t}eiief, that it and its
principals:
11.1. are not presently det)arred. suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a dvil Judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal. State a local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently Indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (l)(b)
of this ceitrtcation: and '

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal. State or local) terminated for cause or default

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
ce^fication, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant as

defined in 45 CFR Part 76. certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voiunlaiiily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall atta^ an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity. and
Voluritary Exclusiori - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in ali lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: 3SI Research & Training institute, inc

by:

5/31/2022 I
Date

Title: .
Director

(5Exhibit F - CertiricaUon Rage^ing Debarment. Suspension Contractor tnitiala^
And Otber Responsibifily Matters 5/31/2022
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CERTCFICATION OF COMPUANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS PERTAINING TO

FEDERAL NONDiSCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FAITH.9ASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

Contractor will comply, and wiQ require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrim'ination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or In
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. the Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Deiinquer>cy Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obSgations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the tiasis of race, color, reBgion. national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirerhents;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Section 794). which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program a activity;

• the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment. State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

• the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86). which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07}, which prohibits discrimination on the
t>dsis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does' not include
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJJDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships ̂ th faith-based end neighborhood organizations:

-28 C.F.R. pt 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations-Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and V^istleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2. 2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee WhtsUeblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification .or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment.

E^d^lbil G
Conlraclor Inilials'

Cm\'fK^on cf Con*<iac« «Ch f•9A«n«nl} le Ffdwd HondhoWnelien Equil Trtatnwnl d O^adzdidns

M7m • 5/31/2022
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In the event a Pederai or Stale court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discnminatlon after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections t.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the foDowing
certlficdtion:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name: 3S1 Research & Training institute, inc

5/31/2022

Date

—  by:

Robert'

Director

Exhibtl G
Contractor Initials

e07ri4

An. tOOi/i4

e< Corr«ii4K4 (>4uir«m«rtU p«nbWnQ loFM4«4l Eteid Tr«MmM a( F«iirvBAMd OrMniutittM
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part 0 • Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 16. if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facUities used for inpatient doig or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
S1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor kjentifted in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: JSI Research & Training institute, inc.

5/31/2022

Date

G—OMuSlgnM Vir:
tobe rt

Title:
Oi rector

cuomsntorn

ExhiDit K ->Certjrica(lon Regarding
Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILfTY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT ^

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Paris 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, "Business
Associate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and 'Covered
Entity' shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitiona.

a. 'Breach' shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

b. "Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity' has the meaning given such term In section 160.103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. "Designated Record Set" shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. 'Data Aggregation* shall have the same meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. "Health Care Operations" shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act' means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act. TitleXIII, Subtitle*D. Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.501(g).

j. 'Privacy Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Services.

k. 'Protected Health Information" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received-b^
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

3/2014 ExhlWII Coftiradof
Health Insurance Ponat^lity Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/31/2022
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I. "Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term 'required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. 'Secretary' shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

0. 'Unsecured Protected Health infomiatlon" means protected health Information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions • All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to lime, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shati not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further. Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party. Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonabfe assurances from the third party that such PHI will t5e held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not. unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law. without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure^and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busj^s

3/2014 ExNbin Conlfaelof
Health Insurance PonaWUly Art
Business Associate Agreement 5/31/2022
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

If the Covered Entity notiTies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Qbliaations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security Incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be'
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has t^een

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on t)ehalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

8. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (l). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the .Contractor's txisiness ajs^iate
ajgreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be feceivim^f^l

3/2014 ExWWll Conlraclor Inilials-.
HeaKh Insurance Ponabiiiiy Act
euslness Associate Agreement 5/31/202 2
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall tie governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement. >

g. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CPR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for *
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI iri accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if fonvarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required tiy such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Assoclate.shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit fur^er uses and disclosures of such PHI to thas®#
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as BusinessI

3/2014 Exheil I Contfaclof
Health Inauranoe PorlaUUly Act
Buslneaa Asaodate AgreemGni S/31/2022
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) Obligations of Covefed Entltv
•  .9

•a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or.
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(6) Termination for Cause

In addition to. Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P'37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either irhmediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach vyithin a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Reoulatorv References. All terms used, bul not othenvise defined herein,

shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
arhended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time.as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights .
with resf^ct to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Enti^.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be r|»ofe/ed
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule.

3/2014 Exhibit I Conirector Intlials^
He2Rh Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement 5/31/2022
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e. SeoreQation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
'person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

■Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI. extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I. the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Department C3f Heallh and..Human Services 3S1 Research Training institute, inc.

Signature^of Authorized Representative

Patricia M. Tilley

Contractor

-^loan^liLaiig,'■ ■■■■■
Signature of Authorized Representative

Katie Robert

Name of Authorized'Representative Name of Authorized Representative
oi rector

7 Director

Title of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative

6/2/2022 5/31/2022

Date Date

3/2014 ExhiUM
HeaRh Insurance Portability'Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTiFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABiLfTY AND TRANSPARENCY

ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and TransparerKy Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal-grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010. to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is tielow $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is su^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation information), the
Oepartment.of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the foOowlr^ information for any
subaward or contract award sut^ect to the FFATA reporting requirements;
1. Name of entity
2. Amount of award

3. Funding agency
4. NAICS code for contracts I CFOA program number for grants
5. Program source
6. Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
7. Location-of the entity
6. Principle place of performance
9. Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal govemment. and those
revenues are greater than S25M annually arid

10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must sut)mlt FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of.
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and PubEc Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified In Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certilication:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed Information as outlined at}ove to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of,the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: 3S1 Research & Training institute, inc.

OMDSigiwd by:r—cw<D»<o<wd by:
U*t UM

Date

Title: director

ExhBail J - CeilincaUon Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Inltlab
5

Accountabllily And Transparency Ad (FFATA) CompBanoe S/31/2022
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FORMA

As (he Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

. ̂  . LKTNULLR6FL6
1. The DUNS number for your entity is:

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, arxJ/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information atout the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of (he Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (IS U.S.C.78m(a).78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the followng:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:

Name;,:.

Name: _

Amount,

Amount:.

Amount:

Amount:

Amount:

CWHHS/nOTt)

Extiibii J - CertiRcaiion Regardhg (he Federal Funding
Accountability Arvl Transparency Ad (FFATA) Compliance
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DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
I

The following terms may be. reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. 'Breach" means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally identifiable *
information, whether physical or electronic! With regard to Protected Health
Information.' Breach* shall have the same meaning as the term 'Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45. Code of Federal Regulations.

2. 'Computer Security Incident' shall have the same meaning 'Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2] of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide. National Institute of Standards and Technology. U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. 'Confidential Information' or "Confidential Data" rneans all confidential information

disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public <
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation. Substance
Abuse Treatment Records. Case Records. Protected ' Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

I

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the Slate of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state a federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI). Personal Financial
Information (PFI). Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN).
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. 'End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's erhployee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA' means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. 'Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft o r device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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mail, all of which may have Ihe potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use. disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. 'Open Wireless Network* means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI.
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Inforrfiation" (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19,* biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name. etc.

'  9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of "Protected Health Information" in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the-American National Standards Institute.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use. disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further^ Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use. disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a.
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request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by taw. in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. tf DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI'
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional reslrictior^ and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional

restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance, with the terms of this
Contract.

II. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ens.ure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrvoted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transrriitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
. hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End Usermay only transmit Confidential Dala„ via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private netv/ork (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Conridential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure nie Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Conndential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP folders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cyde (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

III. RETENTION AND DiSPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After' such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by- law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must;

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract- outside of the United

States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
doud computing, doud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contrador agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Information for contrador provided systems.

3. The Contrador agrees to provide security awareness and educatbn for its End
Users in support of proteding Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH ccmpliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware. and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive Intrusion-detection and rirewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer In the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire-data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the. media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 600-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, National Institute of Standards and Technology. U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify In writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certincation will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly

. evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise speciried, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specined, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract. Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact Stale of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the senrices for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an intemal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will worl( with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. 'if the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the sun/ey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10-. The Coritractpr will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the Uriited States unless
prior express v/ritten consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11.'Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including bu) not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section Vl. This Includes a conHdential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of Nw
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network. '

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all limes.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI. or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from OHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
duririg duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g.. door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.)-

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the.circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security -Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures rriust also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents:

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
1

4. Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and! if so. identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and t>ear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS Privacy Officer;

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:

DHHSInformationSeGurilyOffice@dhhs.nh.90v
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